# **AGREEMENT**

# Between the

# **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

of the

# TORRANCE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

and the

# CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, TORRANCE CHAPTER 845

**JULY 1, 2015** 

Through

**JUNE 30, 2018** 

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
1	RECOGNITION/SCOPE	1
2	DEFINITIONS	1
3	ORGANIZATION RIGHTS	4
4	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	5
5	NON-DISCRIMINATION	6
6	DUES AND ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY	6
7	CALENDAR/HOURS AND OVERTIME	9
8	PAYMENTS AND ALLOWANCES	13
9	TOOLS AND SAFETY	13
10	REIMBURSEMENT FOR EMPLOYEE PROPERTY	14
11	EVALUATION	14
12	HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS	15
13	HOLIDAYS	17
14	VACATION	17
15	LEAVES	17
16	TRANSFER AND ADMINISTRATIVE ASSIGNMENT	30
17	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	31
18	LAYOFF AND REEMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES	32
19	GRIEVANCE	36
20	PROMOTION	40
21	SEVERABILITY	41
22	NEGOTIATION PROCEDURE	41
23	ADULT EDUCATION PROVISIONS	42
24	EFFECTS OF AGREEMENT AND ZIPPER CLAUSE	45
25	DURATION	46
APPENDICES		
A	BARGAINING UNIT SALARY SCHEDULE/CLASSIFICATIONS	
В	TUSD UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	
С	TUSD CIVILITY PROCEDURES	
D	2016/2017 CALENDAR (future calendars to be established)	
E	EVALUATION FORM	
F	FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993	
G	CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK FORMS	
Н	GRIEVANCE FORM	
I	STATE DISABILITY INFORMATION	
J	W/C PRE-DESIGNATION OF PERSONAL PHYSICIAN	
K	MOU	

•

### RECOGNITION/SCOPE

- 1.1 The Torrance Unified School District, herein after referred to as the District, hereby acknowledges the California School Employees Association, Torrance Chapter 845, hereinafter referred to as CSEA, Chapter 845, as being the exclusive bargaining agent for all classified employees holding those positions described in Appendix "A" attached hereto and incorporated by reference as part of this Agreement. The bargaining unit may be expanded to other classes by mutual agreement of the District and CSEA, Chapter 845, subject to the rules of the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB).
- 1.2 Scope of Representation: The scope of representation shall be limited to matters relating to wages, benefits, hours of employment, and other terms and conditions of employment. Terms and conditions of employment mean health and welfare benefits as defined by Government Code Sections 53200, leave, transfer and reassignment policies, safety conditions of employment, procedures to be used for evaluation of employees, organizational security pursuant to Government Code Section 3546, and procedures for processing grievances pursuant to Government Code Sections 3548.5, 3548.6, 3548.7, and 3548.8. Nothing herein may be construed to limit the right of the District to consult with any employee and/or CSEA, Chapter 845, on any matter outside the scope of representation. To the extent that any agreement arrived at through consultation is reduced to writing and embodied in this Agreement or any addendum to this Agreement, the provisions shall be binding on all parties.

### **ARTICLE 2**

#### **DEFINITIONS**

- 2.1 "Assignment" Each classified employee shall be given a specific "assignment" in terms of duties, to whom he/she is responsible, work year, and working hours.
- 2.2 "Anniversary Date" After completion of a probationary period of not less than six (6) months, the employee shall be placed on the second step of the range. Placement shall be effective on the first day of the succeeding month following the granting of permanency. This date shall be the "anniversary date."
- 2.3 "Class" is any group of positions sufficiently similar in duties, responsibilities, and authority that the same job title, minimum qualifications, and salary range are appropriate for all positions in a class.
- 2.4 "Class description" is the description of the duties, responsibilities, minimum qualifications, and desirable qualifications in a class.

- 2.5 "Classification" means that each position in the classified service shall have a designated title; a regular minimum number of assigned hours per day, days per week, and months per year; a specific statement of the duties required to be performed by the employees in each such position; and the regular monthly salary range for each such position.
- 2.6 "Demotion" is a change in assignment of an employee from a position in one class to a position in another class that is allocated to a lower maximum salary rate. Note: Reassignment or involuntary transfer that results in a Paraeducator Tier 2 moving to a Paraeducator Tier 1 shall only be considered a change in assignment, not a change in class, and not a demotion, although the maximum salary rates differ for each. A unit member who has a reassignment from Tier 2 to Tier 1 shall remain at the Tier 2 rate for the remainder of the school year, per Article 16, Transfer and Administrative Assignment."
- "Differential" is a salary allowance in addition to the basic rate or schedule based upon a regular shift in which over one-half (1/2) the regular shift is after 5:00 p.m.
- 2.8 "Fiscal year and school year" is July 1 through June 30.
- 2.9 "Incumbent" is an employee assigned to a position and who is currently serving in or on leave from the position.
- 2.10 "Industrial accident or illness" is an injury or illness arising out of or in the course of employment with the District.
- 2.11 "Involuntary demotion" is a demotion without the employee's voluntary written consent.
- 2.12 "Limited Term" employee is an employee who is serving in lieu of an employee during the regular employee's absence, or serving in a position established for a limited and specified period of time of six (6) months or less. No limited term employee shall be employed beyond the specified period of time authorized except in case of emergency per Education Code 45286.
- 2.13 "Minimum qualifications" are qualifications mandated for the position and which must be possessed by an employee before he/she can be considered for employment in a specific class. Minimum qualifications shall be determined by the Superintendent or designee.
- 2.14 "Notice" means whenever notice is required under this agreement and no other form of notice is designated, written notice to the District shall be by personal delivery or by first class mail to the office of the Superintendent or designee, and notice to CSEA, Chapter 845, shall be written notice, personally delivered or by first class mail to the president of CSEA, Chapter 845, or his/her designee.
- 2.15 "Permanent employee" is a regular employee who successfully completes an initial probationary period.

- 2.16 "Probationary employee" Each new employee appointed from an eligibility list shall serve an initial probationary period of 130 days of paid regular service in one classification in the classified service excluding days absent for illness or injury; these new employees shall be evaluated prior to the end of the third and fifth month of service.
- 2.17 "Promotion" is a change in the assignment of an employee from a position in one class to a vacant position in another class with a higher maximum salary rate.
- 2.18 "Reversion Rights" In the event an employee is promoted and is released from their probationary status in their promoted position, the employee may be returned to a position in his/her former class if the position is vacant or if there is an equivalent vacant position per Personnel Commission Rule 9.3.3.1. In the event that an employee is promoted and is released from their probationary status and subsequently is separated from the permanent classified service, he/she shall have full appeal rights as if the employee had completed permanency in his/her present class per Personnel Commission Rule 19.1.11. In the event that the Personnel Commission Rules change in relation to this definition, this definition will reflect that change.
- 2.19 "Provisional employee" is a person employed temporarily while the examination process is being conducted to fill the position.
- 2.20 "Reclassification" means the upgrading of a position(s) to a higher classification as a result of the gradual accretion of the duties being performed by the incumbent in such position.
- 2.21 "Regular employee" is an employee, whether permanent, probationary, full-time, or part-time, who is not a restricted, substitute, limited-term, or student employee.
- 2.22 "Restricted employee" is an employee hired pursuant to any local, state, or federally funded program which restricts employment to persons in low income groups, designated impoverished areas, and any other criteria which restricts the privilege of all citizens to compete for employment under that program, except as may otherwise be specified by this Agreement.
- 2.23 "Salary rate" is a specific amount of money paid to an employee based upon placement on a salary schedule.
- 2.24 "Salary schedule" is a series of salary steps and ranges which comprise the rates of pay for classes within the bargaining unit.
- 2.25 "Salary step" is one of the salary levels within the range of rates for a class.
- 2.26 "Substitute employee" is an employee who is called on a day-to-day basis to take the place of an absent employee. Substitutes are not a part of the classified service and do not earn the benefits of regular employment. (See Limited Term 2.12)

- 2.27 "Working hours" are all authorized hours in paid status.
- 2.28 "Working day" is any day an employee is required to perform the duties of a position regardless of the number of hours worked.

### **ORGANIZATION RIGHTS**

- 3.1 CSEA, Chapter 845, shall have the following rights in addition to the rights contained in any other portion of this Agreement.
  - 3.1.1 The right of access to areas in which employees work, provided employees are not disturbed during duty time. The CSEA, Chapter 845, authorized representative shall report in to the supervisor of the area prior to contacting individuals or groups of employees.
  - 3.1.2 The right to use, without charge, institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, school delivery service, district email, and other District means of communication for the posting or transmission of information on notices concerning CSEA, Chapter 845, matters.
  - 3.1.3 CSEA, Chapter 845, and its members shall have the right to make use of school equipment facilities and buildings in accordance with the "Civic Center Act."
  - 3.1.4 CSEA, Chapter 845, shall receive, in electronic form, a list of all classified employees within the bargaining unit as of the first workweek in October each year for the life of this Agreement. The list shall include name, job classification, address, phone number, job location, employment dates and district email. In the event of a layoff, a seniority list shall be furnished at least sixty (60) days prior to the impending layoff and ten (10) days prior to notification to the employee of the layoff. The annual list and the seniority list, in the event of the layoff, shall be furnished at no charge. All other requested lists by CSEA, Chapter 845, shall be at the current District rate for producing such lists.
  - 3.1.5 The right to obtain copies of any budget, financial materials, or other materials that are available to the public.
  - 3.1.6 The right to release time, without pay, for employees who are California School Employees Association (CSEA) state officers.
  - 3.1.7 The right to release time, with pay, for up to five (5) Association unit members to attend the CSEA annual conference held in July or August. The District shall not be responsible for paid release time for bargaining unit employees who are not scheduled to work during the conference.

3.1.8 A reasonable number of representatives of an exclusive representative shall have the right to receive reasonable periods of released time without loss of compensation when meeting and negotiating and for the processing of grievances. CSEA will make every effort to expand the number of qualified representatives available for representation.

#### 3.1.9 Release Time

Torrance Unified School District shall annually provide a maximum of (20) days (160 hours) of paid release time combined for all Chapter members for the purpose of conducting Association business. This amount of release time is in addition to the release time provided for in Section 3.1.8 of this Article. The release time shall be requested by CSEA at least 24 hours prior to utilizing any release time from the employee's immediate supervisor.

- 3.2 Distribution of Contract: Within sixty (60) days after the execution of this Agreement, the District shall print or duplicate and provide copies of this Agreement for every employee in the bargaining unit. Any employee who becomes a member of the bargaining unit after the execution of the Agreement shall be provided with a copy of this Agreement by the District at the time of employment. Each employee in the bargaining unit shall be provided by the District, without charge, a copy of any written changes agreed to by the parties to this Agreement during the life of this Agreement. The parties shall share the cost of printing and distribution of the Agreement equally.
- 3.3 Within ten (10) working days CSEA shall be notified of any new bargaining unit members. Each new employee at the time of hire will receive a packet of information to include: Bargaining Unit Agreement, Defined Work Year Calendar, and District New Hire Information. After CSEA receives its notification:
  - a. CSEA shall assign a designee to be granted one-half hour of voluntary orientation of new unit members for the purpose of New Employee Orientation.
  - b. CSEA shall work with the Site Administrator to conduct its New Employee Orientation during break or lunch periods, or mutually acceptable times.
  - c. The parties agree that the use of such New Employee Orientation time shall be in accordance with section 3.1.9 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

### **ARTICLE 4**

# **MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

CSEA, Chapter 845, agrees that the Board's authority is limited only by that which is inconsistent with law or violative of specific provisions of this Agreement. Further, the Board

has the responsibility and authority to manage and to direct, on behalf of the public, all operations and activities of the School District both to the fullest extent authorized by law and in any manner of decision to which the Board deems appropriate.

## **ARTICLE 5**

### NON-DISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT

- 5.1 No employee in the bargaining unit shall in any way be favored or discriminated against in wages, hours, or other terms and conditions of employment because of the employee's political opinions or affiliation (unless such affiliation or opinion advocates the overthrow of the United States Government); or because of race, national origin, religion, or marital status; and, to the extent prohibited by law, no person shall be discriminated against because of age, sex, or physical handicap. This Article shall be subject to the TUSD Uniform Complaint Procedures in lieu of the grievance procedure as attached in Appendix B. In addition, the employee may seek concurrent administrative relief by filing a complaint with the Equal Employment Opportunities Commission (EEOC) and/or the Fair Employment and Housing Practices Department of the State of California (FEHP).
- Any parent, guardian or other person whose conduct in a place where a school employee is required to be in the course of his or her duties materially disrupts class work or extracurricular activities or involves substantial disorder is guilty of a misdemeanor. (EC44811)
- 5.3 If an employee believes a District administrator, supervisor or other person systematically and persistently badgers, upbraids, or threatens an employee, the employee shall utilize the TUSD Civility Procedures in lieu of the grievance procedure as provided in Appendix C. Such statements shall include specific instances including dates and times of the action(s) that are alleged to be harassment. The uniform complaint procedures are not to be utilized as a substitute for the procedure of federal or state law to handle claims of sexual or discriminatory harassment.

#### ARTICLE 6

## **DUES AND ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY**

- 6.1 It is the mutual intention of the parties that the provisions of this Article protect the rights of individual workers without restricting CSEA's right to require every bargaining unit member, except those exempt from these provisions, to pay a fair share of the cost of collective bargaining activities.
- 6.2 Except as expressly exempted herein, all bargaining unit members who do not maintain membership in good standing in CSEA are required, as a condition of continued

- employment, to pay service fees to CSEA, in amounts that do not exceed the periodic dues of CSEA, for the duration of this Agreement.
- 6.3 The DISTRICT and CSEA intend to implement the provisions of Government Code Section 3546 as set out in this Agreement effective the first day following ratification of this Agreement.
  - 6.3.1 Bargaining unit members shall maintain membership in good standing in CSEA, pay service fees directly to CSEA or, if a religious exemption is granted, make equivalent payments to charity in lieu of service fees.
- No bargaining unit member shall be obligated to join and pay membership dues or service fees to CSEA until the first of the month following sixty (60) calendar days after the bargaining unit member first comes into the bargaining unit.
  - 6.4.1 Those unit members in the bargaining unit at the time of the ratification shall be obligated to join and pay membership dues or pay a service fee within sixty (60) days of the date of the ratification.
- 6.5 Any bargaining unit member who is a member of a religious body whose traditional tenets or teachings include objections to joining or paying service fees to employee organizations shall not be required to join, maintain membership in, or pay service fees to CSEA as a condition of employment. However, such bargaining unit member shall be required, in lieu of a service fee required by this Agreement, to pay sums equal to such service fee to one of the following nonreligious, non-labor organizations, charitable funds exempt from taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
  - a. American Cancer Society
  - b. American Heart Association
  - c. American Red Cross
  - d. Torrance Education Foundation
  - 6.5.1 Any bargaining unit member claiming this religious exemption must file a written request for exemption with CSEA. If the request is granted, the bargaining unit member shall, as a condition of continued exemption from the requirement of paying service fees to CSEA, furnish CSEA with copies of receipts from the charity selected, as proof that such payments have been made, or shall authorize payroll deduction of such payments.

#### 6.6 DUES AND SERVICE FEE DEDUCTIONS

6.6.1 CSEA has the sole and exclusive right to have employee organization membership dues and service fees deducted by the DISTRICT for unit members in the bargaining unit.

- The DISTRICT shall deduct, in accordance with the CSEA dues and service fee schedule, dues, service fees or payments to charity in lieu of service fees from the wages of all bargaining unit members who have submitted payroll deduction authorization forms to the DISTRICT. Such authorization shall remain in effect until expressly revoked in writing by the bargaining unit member.
- 6.6.3 The DISTRICT shall, without charge, pay to CSEA within thirty (30) days of the deduction all sums so deducted, except that the DISTRICT shall pay to the designated charity sums deducted in lieu of service fees from the wages of bargaining unit members whose requests for religious exemption have been approved by CSEA pursuant to this Agreement.
- 6.6.4 Along with each monthly payment to CSEA, the DISTRICT shall, without charge; furnish CSEA with the dues deduction register from the Los Angeles County Office of Education.
- 6.6.5 Nothing contained herein shall prohibit a bargaining unit member from paying service fees or membership dues directly to CSEA. Any unit member exercising this option shall be required to pay the annual amount in advance.
- 6.6.6 The DISTRICT shall notify the CSEA Chapter 845 Treasurer or Chapter 845 President if any member of the bargaining unit revokes a dues, service fee or payment in lieu of service fee deduction authorization.
- 6.6.7 The DISTRICT shall deduct and pay to CSEA service fees for each bargaining unit member who is obligated to pay such fees, pursuant to this Agreement, unless CSEA notifies the DISTRICT that the bargaining unit member is paying such fees directly to CSEA. A payroll deduction authorization form shall not be required for such deductions.

#### 6.7 MISCELLANEOUS

- 6.7.1 CSEA will furnish all service fee payers with an adequate explanation of the basis for the fee and the calculation of that portion of the fee which is chargeable to activities related to collective bargaining. CSEA will provide all service fee payers with a reasonably prompt opportunity to challenge this calculation before an impartial decision maker and will deposit into an interest-bearing escrow account all amounts reasonably in dispute while such challenges are pending.
- 6.7.2 CSEA agrees to reimburse the DISTRICT, its officers and agents for reasonable attorney's fees and legal costs incurred after notice to CSEA in defending against any court of administrative action challenging the legality of the organization security provisions of this Agreement or the implementation thereof.
- 6.7.3 CSEA agrees to reimburse the DISTRICT, its officer and agents for any award or compromise of damages or liability arising out of any court of administrative

action challenging the legality of the organization security provisions of this Agreement or the implementation thereof, provided the DISTRICT has complied with the terms of this Article and has promptly notified CSEA of its awareness of such an action.

6.7.4 CSEA shall have the exclusive right to decide and determine whether any such action shall be compromised, resisted, defended, tried or appealed.

#### **ARTICLE 7**

### CALENDAR/HOURS AND OVERTIME

- 7.1 The work year calendar for all classifications in this unit shall be subject to negotiations and included in this agreement. (Appendix D).
- 7.2 The full workweek shall consist of five (5) consecutive days, eight (8) hours per day, and forty (40) hours per week. This section shall not restrain the extension of the regular workday or workweek on an overtime basis when such is necessary to carry on the business of the District as provided for in Section 7.7 of this Agreement article.

  Workday The Length of the workday shall be designated by the District for each classified assignment. Each bargaining unit employee, accepting such assignment, shall be assigned fixed, regular and minimum number of hours. The employee's workday shall not be reduced in hours, except in accordance with Article 18, Layoff. In addition to the requirements under Article 18, any decision by the District to reduce a unit employee(s) hours, such decision and/or impacts of the decision shall be subject to negotiations with CSEA.
- 7.3 Employees in the bargaining unit who are assigned to work and average of thirty (30) minutes or more per day in excess of their regular part-time assignment for a period of twenty (20) consecutive working days or more shall have their regular assignment adjusted to reflect the longer hours effective with the next pay period.
- 7.4 All employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to an uninterrupted lunch period without pay after employees have been on duty for over five (5) or more hours. The length of time for such lunch period shall be for a period of no longer than one (1) hour or less than one-half (1/2) hour and shall be scheduled for full-time employees at or about the midpoint of each work shift. Employees required to work during their lunch periods shall receive compensatory time off or pay at the regular rate for all the required time worked during the normal lunch period except if working during a lunch period exceeds eight (8) hours.

- 7.5 All bargaining unit employees shall be granted rest periods which, insofar as practicable, shall be midway between each consecutive four hour period worked, regardless of whether or not an employee holds more than one assignment in a workday. The employee shall be entitled to a 15 minute break during each rest period. Rest break schedules shall be assigned by the employee's immediate supervisor, subject to the provisions of this section.
  - 7.5.1 Specific rest periods may be designated when operations of the District require someone to be present at the employee's work site.
  - 7.5.2 Rest periods are part of the regular work day and shall be compensated at the regular rate of pay for the employee.
  - 7.5.3 Any employee who chooses to take their 15 minute break at a location other than their assigned worksite may do so provided they return to their assignment within the 15 minute break period.
- 7.6 At each work site, the District shall make available lunchroom, restrooms, and lavatory facilities for classified employees in the bargaining unit.
- 7.7 Except as otherwise provided herein, all overtime hours as defined in this section shall be compensated at a rate of pay equal to one and one-half (1 1/2) times the regular rate of pay of employees for all work authorized. Overtime is defined to include any authorized time worked in excess of eight (8) hours in any one day, or on any one shift, in excess of forty (40) hours in any one calendar week whether such hours are worked prior to the commencement of a regularly assigned starting time or subsequent to the assigned quitting time.
  - 7.7.1 The workweek shall consist of not more than five (5) consecutive workdays for employees having an average workday of four (4) hours or more during the workweek. Employees shall be compensated for any work assigned on the sixth (6th) or seventh (7th) day following the commencement of the workweek at a rate equal to one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay.
  - 7.7.2 Employees having an average workday of less than four (4) hours during the workweek shall, for any assigned work required to be performed on the seventh (7th) day following the commencement of the workweek, be compensated for at a rate equal to one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay.
  - 7.7.3 When employees are assigned to work on a scheduled holiday, said employees shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay in addition to the regular pay received for the holiday.
- 7.8 A five percent (5%) shift differential shall be applied to those employees where over one-half (1/2) of the regularly scheduled work shift is after 5:00 p.m. When so qualified, the five percent (5%) differential shall be applied to the total shift wages.

An employee who receives a shift differential premium on the basis of the shift worked shall suffer no reduction in pay, including differential, when assigned to a day shift for twenty (20) consecutive days or less. If the change of shift is for more than twenty (20) days, then the employees shall lose the shift differential upon assuming the new shift.

- 7.9 An employee in the bargaining unit shall have the option to elect to take compensatory time off in lieu of cash compensation for overtime work if mutually agreeable with immediate supervisor. Compensatory time granted shall be at the appropriate rate of overtime. When compensatory time off is authorized in lieu of cash compensation, such compensatory time off shall be granted within twelve (12) calendar months following the month in which the overtime was worked and without impairing the services rendered by the District.
- 7.10 Any employee called back after completing a shift shall be entitled to pay for hours worked, but not less than two (2) hours at the appropriate rate of pay, commencing with time of notification.
- 7.11 Overtime shall be distributed and rotated as equally as practicable among qualified employees in the bargaining unit within each class at the work site subject to the approval of the Superintendent or designee.
- 7.12 Any employee shall have the right to reject any offer or request for call back, call in, or overtime within reason.
- 7.13 Any employee called to work on a day when the employee is not scheduled to work shall be paid for the hours worked, but not less than for two (2) hours at the appropriate rate of pay, commencing with time of notification.
- 7.14 To compute the number of hours worked, all authorized time during which an employee is in a paid status shall be construed as hours worked.
- 7.15 Assignment Other Than the Regular Work Year:
  - 7.15.1 When the Board establishes temporary positions during the recess period outside of the regular September to June school year, or during other recess periods during the fiscal year (including summer school positions), those positions shall be offered to regular employees of the District not regularly employed during these periods. Appointment to these positions shall be on the basis of seniority (except as noted below) among employees requesting summer/recess period employment in the class to which the position has been allocated by the Director Employee Resources. If there are insufficient employees in the class, appointment shall be made on the basis of seniority of employees who are qualified to perform the duties of the position as determined by the Torrance Unified School District.

- 7.15.1.1 The first priority to fill bargaining unit vacancies during a summer recess period shall go to the employee that is on regular assignment to the student who is attending the summer school classes and/or extended year programs.
  - a) Priority to fill bargaining unit vacancies during the summer school and/or extended school year programs for Paraeducator's positions shall go to the employee that works directly with the student attending the summer school class or extended year program during the regular school year. Should more than one Paraeducator work with the student during the regular school year priority to fill the position shall be determined by seniority between the employees who work directly with the student.
  - b) Priority to fill bargaining unit vacancies during the summer school and/or extended school year programs if not attached to a student, shall be based on seniority.
  - c) Priority to fill bargaining unit vacancies during the summer school and/or extended school year programs for ASSISTT Educational Assistants shall be made on the basis of seniority.
  - d) Priority to fill bargaining unit vacancies during the summer recess period for Instructional Assistants and Adult Education Instructional Assistants shall be by seniority; date of hire within the classification.
  - e) Priority to fill Substitute positions during the summer school and/or extended school year programs shall be made on the basis of seniority; date of hire within the classification. If the employee is not assigned to a summer school vacancy then the seniority process outlined in Article 7.15.1 shall apply.
- 7.16 When an employee serves longer than five (5) days in a higher classification within a fifteen (15)-calendar-day period on a temporary basis for another employee, the employee shall receive the rate of pay for the higher classification as prescribed in Education Code Section 45110.
- 7.17 For limited term and substitute appointments expected to last a minimum of 20 work days, the District will make every effort to select from permanent bargaining unit employees on the eligibility list for the higher classification needing to be filled.
- 7.18 Outside of negotiations, TUSD will provide two (2) days of professional staff development for CSEA 845 during the 2015-16 school year, the first will be October 13, 2015 and the second will be April 29, 2016.

## PAYMENTS AND ALLOWANCES

- 8.1 The regular rate of pay for each position in the bargaining unit shall be in accordance with the rates established for each class as provided for in Appendix "A" which is attached hereto and, by reference, incorporated as part of this Agreement. Pay shall also include any shift differential and/or longevity increment required to be paid under this Agreement.
- 8.2 All employees in the bargaining unit shall receive their regular paychecks no less than twice per month. Part time employees whose health and welfare/voluntary benefits may be affected by bi-monthly pay may opt for once a month pay by utilization of the district form.
- 8.3 Any payroll error resulting in insufficient payment to employees in the bargaining unit shall be corrected and a supplemental check issued within (5) working days.
  - 8.3.1 When an employee is found to have been overpaid, the District shall meet with the employee and come to a written agreement with the employee on how the said overpayment will be repaid.
- 8.4 Employees in the bargaining unit authorized to use their vehicles for District business shall be reimbursed at the rate established by the IRS.
- 8.5 The District agrees to continue to compensate employees for anniversary increments in accordance with the current salary schedule.
- 8.6 CSEA 845 is guaranteed the highest settlement once all TUSD bargaining units are settled. The retroactive pay, back to July 1, 2014 at highest percentage is paid once all bargaining units have settled.

#### ARTICLE 9

### TOOLS AND SAFETY

- 9.1 The District shall provide all tools and equipment necessary to perform assigned responsibilities.
- 9.2 The District shall provide safety equipment required by CAL-OSHA.
- 9.3 The District shall provide and pay for required medical examinations and any required tests.

9.4 CSEA, Chapter 845, may appoint two members of the bargaining unit to the District's Safety Committee.

#### ARTICLE 10

### REIMBURSEMENT FOR EMPLOYEE PROPERTY

- 10.1 Reimbursements shall be made to employees in the bargaining unit for the loss, destruction or damage by arson, burglary, vandalism, or during a student disturbance of personal property used in the schools of the District.
- 10.2 Reimbursement for property other than personal articles such as clothing, eyeglasses, and watches shall be made only when written approval is obtained on a District-provided form for the use of the personal property in the District before the property was brought to the District and when the value of property was agreed upon between the employee(s) bringing the property and the immediate supervisor.
- 10.3 No reimbursement shall be made to any employee in the bargaining unit for mysterious disappearance, accidental damage, or any other loss suffered because of lack of supervision by the owner. The property shall not remain in the District over a weekend, on holidays, or during vacation periods. The maximum reimbursement shall not exceed \$400 for each separate item.
- 10.4 The District shall be entitled to subrogation rights, if any.

### **ARTICLE 11**

## **EVALUATION**

- 11.1 A unit member shall serve a one hundred thirty (130) days of paid service in a probationary period.
- 11.2 Probationary unit members shall be evaluated by their primary administrator prior to recommendations for permanency. Evaluations shall be completed by the 65<sup>th</sup> working day and the 105<sup>th</sup> working day prior to a recommendation for permanency on standard evaluation forms. Permanent unit members shall be evaluated on or before the unit member's anniversary date unless the immediate supervisor determines it unnecessary, but no less than every other year. The DISTRICT shall provide the necessary evaluation forms to be completed by the administrator.
- 11.3 Evaluations shall be performed by the assigned supervisor. Certificated unit member(s) may provide input to the evaluation but may not be the official evaluator. Evaluation forms will be signed by the responsible administrator.

- 11.4 The unit member shall sign the evaluation to indicate knowledge of the contents but not necessarily agreement on the contents.
- 11.5 The unit member shall be provided a copy of the evaluation at the time that it is signed. If the unit member requests a follow up meeting, then that meeting shall be scheduled within a reasonable period of time and provide an opportunity for meaningful dialogue between the unit member and the responsible supervisor.
- Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the evaluation, the unit member may file a written response to the evaluation with Human Resources and have that response attached to the evaluation and placed in the unit member's personnel file. Upon written request of the employee, the time limit for a written response may be extended.
- 11.7 Unsatisfactory evaluations in one or more areas require an explanation of unsatisfactory performance and specific suggestions for improvement. Unit members shall take positive action to correct deficiencies in performance. The evaluator's role in assisting the unit member may include, but not be limited to, the following:
  - Shall include specific recommendations for improvement;
  - Direct assistance to implement such recommendations;
  - Techniques to measure improvement; and
  - A reasonable time schedule to monitor unit member's progress.
- 11.8 Appeal: An evaluation is the formal judgment of an evaluator regarding employees' performances. Employees who believe that their evaluations are not a true reflection of their performances may request a conference with the principal, division head, or a representative of the Human Resources Department, to discuss the evaluation. Employees appealing evaluations shall be entitled to representation by CSEA.
- 11.9 Incidents that may result in discipline shall be documented under separate processes.
- 11.10 Evaluation forms shall be in triplicate. The original shall be sent to the personnel file.

  One copy shall be kept in the files of the administrator, and one copy shall be given to the unit member.
- 11.11 Evaluations may be grieved for procedural violations of this Article.

### **HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS**

12.1 Health and Welfare Benefits

- 12.1.1 Benefits specified by law or authorized by the Board of Education shall be provided for all regular employees of the bargaining unit who work twenty (20) or more hours per week shall be paid to qualified regular employees of the bargaining unit. Benefits for part-time employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week shall be prorated in the same ratio as the regular work hours per day, or days per week, bear to eight (8) hours per day, forty (40) hours per week.
- 12.1.2 The District shall provide eligible unit members the opportunity to enroll in the District's group medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits for the term of this Agreement.
- 12.1.3 The District's contributions toward the payment of the premiums of benefits shall be \$848 tenthly for full time employees, effective October 1, 2006.
- 12.1.4 Eligible unit members shall be entitled to purchase dependent coverage for health insurance via payroll deduction.
- 12.1.5 Bargaining unit members who are sixty-five (65) years of age or younger who retire shall be entitled to enroll in a District-sponsored health program provided that they pay the required premiums in a manner consistent with District practice. To be eligible, the retired employee must have been employed by the District for a period of five (5) consecutive years prior to retirement and have been eligible to participate in the District's health plans.
- 12.1.6 Bargaining unit members who are sixty-five (65) years of age or older who retire shall be entitled to enroll in a District-sponsored companion coverage health program provided that they pay the required premiums in a manner consistent with District practice. To be eligible, the retired employee must have been employed by the District for a period of five (5) consecutive years prior to retirement, and have been eligible to participate in the District's health plans.
- 12.2 When an employee is unable to work or must reduce work hours because of sickness, injury, or pregnancy, that is NOT related to his/her job, they are eligible to apply for State Disability Insurance benefits. Employees must file a "Claim for State Disability Insurance Benefits" within 49 days of the first day of their disability to avoid losing benefits. (see Appendix for more information.)

### **HOLIDAYS**

13.1 The District agrees to provide all employees in the bargaining unit with the following paid holidays:

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

Lincoln's Birthday

Washington's Birthday (third Monday in February)

Memorial Day

Independence Day

Labor Day

Veterans Day

Thanksgiving Holidays (2)

Christmas Eve

Christmas Day (in lieu of Admission Day)

New Year's Eve

Floating Holiday (one (1) day for entire unit to be identified yearly by the District and CSEA)

In order to be eligible for holiday pay, an employee shall be in paid status during any portion of the working day immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday.

- 13.2 Every day declared by the President of the United States of America or the Governor of the State as a public fast, thanksgiving, holiday, or any day declared by the Board of Education as a paid holiday shall be considered a paid holiday for members in the bargaining unit. Such holidays shall be in accordance with the provisions of Education Code Sections 37220, 37222, and 45203.
- 13.3 Holidays falling on Saturday shall be observed on the preceding Friday; holidays falling on Sunday shall be observed on the following Monday.

#### **ARTICLE 14**

#### VACATION

- 14.1 Vacation time shall be granted at the convenience of the District.
  - 14.1.1 Each regular employee shall begin earning vacation time upon initial employment. Such vacation shall not be granted until six (6) full months of

- service has been completed. An exception may be necessary for ten (10) month employees.
- 14.1.2 An employee who works less than twelve (12) months shall take their earned vacation during the Winter and/or Spring recesses. In the event an employee does not use all accrued vacation days during the current school year, he/she will be paid any unused balance at the end of the school year. For bargaining unit members who do not accrue sufficient vacation days to cover the Winter and/or Spring recesses, these members will be advanced only his/her actual accrued vacation days for the school year.
  - 14.1.2.1 Bargaining unit members who have 10 years or more of service may use excess vacation days on calendared non student/non work days or be paid for any unused balance at the end of the school year. Requests for use must be submitted in writing to the staff assistant or appropriate person, at least two (2) weeks before the end of the pay period for that month.
  - 14.1.2.2 ESY unit members may use their accrued vacation time during ESY for calendared, non-student and non-work days.
- 14.1.3 Accumulated vacation time for twelve (12) month employees must be taken before June 30 of each year after the first fiscal year. Twelve (12) month employees may take their vacations during the second year of employment.
- 14.1.4 If the District denies a vacation request, the employee may request a written response as to the reason for the denial. The District will respond, in writing, within five (5) working days of the latter request.
- 14.1.5 An employee may not accumulate a vacation balance in excess of the days earned in the current fiscal year and the previous year, and only if the District authorizes the carryover of the previous year's balance, for a maximum total vacation balance of two year's earnings. The maximum vacation payout at retirement or termination from the District is capped at two year's earned vacation days.
- 14.2 As of July 1 of each fiscal year, each regular full-time employee shall earn vacation time with full pay each month the employee is in a paid status for more than one-half (1/2) the working days in that month as described in the following schedule:

Years of Service	Days Per Month	
1 year through 3 years	1.00	
4 years through 9 years	1.25	
10 years through 14 years	1.50	
15 years through 19 years	1.75	
20 years and over	2.00	

- 14.3 Regular employees working less than full time shall earn vacation benefits in direct proportion to full-time employees.
- 14.4 At the beginning of the school year, bargaining unit members may be granted in advance the number of vacation days expected to be earned that school year as stipulated in Section 14.2 of this Article.
- 14.5 If a bargaining unit member terminates and had been granted vacation which was not yet earned at the time of termination of the employee's services, the District shall deduct from the employee's final check the full amount of salary which was paid for such unearned days of vacation taken.

### **LEAVES**

#### 15.1 GENERAL LEAVE POLICIES

The Board of Education may grant a leave of absence upon the written request of an employee as specified in this article.

- 15.1.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement. All leaves require prior District approval.
- 15.1.2 If there is evidence of leave abuse, the District may require supporting documentation of stated reasons for leave.
- 15.1.3 Eligible unit members on paid leave shall continue to receive the benefits provided in Article 12 Health and Welfare Benefits.
- 15.1.4 Eligible unit members shall for the duration of the unpaid leave be entitled to continue their health and welfare benefit coverage at their own expense, except for Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 as provided for in 15.2.3.3, providing all premiums are received by the required due dates.
- 15.1.5 The District may require a medical examination at District expense to confirm fitness to perform assigned duties. The scope of the examination shall be related to the cause necessitating the fitness review. If there is a dispute on fitness to perform assigned duties based upon a disagreement between the District's chosen doctor and the unit member's doctor, an independent third doctor shall be chosen by mutual agreement to render the decision on the fitness for duty of the unit member.

- 15.1.5.1 In the event the examining doctor determines that the unit member is not fit for duty, the unit member shall be entitled to the sick leave provisions of this agreement.
- 15.1.5.2 In the event the independent doctor determines that the unit member is fit to render service and District's requirement for the additional examination has prevented the unit member's return, the unit member shall be entitled to back-pay for the period of time the unit member was going through the third doctor process.
- 15.1.6 A unit member who fails to report for duty within five (5) working days after leave has been canceled or expires shall be considered to have abandoned his or her position and may be subject to disciplinary action. This provision is not applicable to military leave.
- 15.1.7 Immediate family referred to throughout this Article shall mean the mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse of the employee; the spouse; son, son-in-law; daughter, daughter-in-law; brother or sister of the employee or the spouse; step-child or step-parent of the employee; foster child; any person who has served as a foster parent or legal guardian to the employee; or registered domestic partner; or any relative living in the immediate household of the employee. Under extenuating circumstances, the District may approve persons other than those listed herein.

#### 15.2 LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

- 15.2.1 Leave of absence without pay may be granted to a permanent unit member upon written request of the unit member, and the approval of the District, subject to the restrictions and conditions outlined in this Article.
- 15.2.2 Leave of absence without pay may be granted for any period not exceeding six (6) months, but may be extended for six (6) months with the approval of the Board of Education.
- 15.2.3 Leave of absence without pay shall be granted for any of the following reasons:
  - 15.2.3.1 Attending school or college to the trained to improve the quality of service or prepare for promotion. Evidence of enrollment must be supplied.
  - 15.2.3.2 After sick leave benefits have been depleted, a health leave shall be granted to unit members who are incapacitated by illness or injury in accordance with Education Code 45195. A written statement from the unit member's physician shall be required to establish the leave, and a written clearance shall be required for return to active duty.

- 15.2.3.3 Eligible unit members may take an unpaid leave of absence, under the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA). This Article shall be subject to the Federal law requirements under FMLA in lieu of the grievance procedure. (Appendix F)
- 15.2.3.4 CSEA members who do not qualify for FMLA will be eligible for an additional 12 weeks of leave of absence which can be taken intermittently when medically necessary. The use of leave may be for a seriously ill family member or an employee's serious medical condition. Use is based on supporting documentation and pre-approval by the unit member's immediate supervisor.

Use of leave shall run concurrently with other paid leaves (i.e. sick leave, extended illness leave, industrial accident leave, etc.) as outlined in the collective bargaining agreement.

Unit members who utilize leave under this provision shall not have adverse personnel actions against them for these absences.

- 15.3 Upon returning from a leave of absence, the District will reinstate the unit member to his/her original position if the leave is one hundred twenty (120) working days or less. If the leave is longer than one hundred twenty (120) working days and arrangements have been made and stipulated in writing at the time of leave, the unit member may return to the original position. Otherwise, a unit member returning from leave of absence shall be eligible for reassignment within the classification.
- 15.4 Pregnancy disability leave shall be granted for a maximum of twelve (12) months upon written request.
  - 15.4.1 A statement from the employee's licensed physician must verify the beginning and ending dates of the period of incapacity. The beginning date of a maternity leave shall be effective when requested and mutually agreed to and verification is provided by the attending physician and the employee is pregnant.
  - 15.4.2 Should the employee's health preclude return to duty at the end of the pregnancy disability leave, a health leave for a maximum of one year may be granted upon written request of the employee.
  - 15.4.3 Classified employees adopting a child shall be entitled to a leave after receiving de facto custody of the child or prior to receiving such custody, if necessary, in order to fulfill the requirements for adoption. The same consideration would be granted for extension of the period of leave as provided for employees on pregnancy disability leave.

15.4.4 Sick leave pay during pregnancy disability leave shall be in accordance with Section 15.6 of this Article.

#### 15.5 MILITARY LEAVE

The Board of Education shall grant a leave of absence to any employee for the duration of military service with the United States of America, subject only to presentation of satisfactory evidence of physical and mental fitness to serve the District on return from military service. Such absence shall not in any way affect the classification of the employee.

- 15.5.1 In the case of probationary employees, military leave shall not alter the probationary status of the employee, but such absence shall not be construed as a break in the continuity of the service of such employee.
- 15.5.2 An employee, while absent from duty because engaged in armed forces duty, who has been in the service of the District for a period of not less than one (1) year immediately prior to the day of which the absences begins, shall be entitled initially to receive one month's salary (or part thereof).
- 15.5.3 Within 180 days after the honorable discharge of such employee form the armed forces of the United States of America, the employee shall be entitled to return to the position held by the employee at the time of the employee's entrance into the military service at the salary to which the employee would have been entitled had the employee continued in the services of the District.
- 15.5.4 All unit members who are reserve members of the Armed Forces are requested to make every effort to arrange for active duty for training during their vacation periods. However, if there are circumstances wherein reserve or draft deferred status would thereby be jeopardized, or if there are other extenuating circumstances, the unit member should submit a written request to the Director Employee Resources giving full particulars therein before requesting orders for active duty training. A copy of the unit member's military orders shall be provided to the immediate supervisor and Human Resources Department as soon as possible.

## 15.6 SICK LEAVE – GENERAL PROVISIONS

Every regular employee shall earn one (1) day of sick leave per full month of paid status to a maximum of twelve (12) per year. To qualify for a full month of paid status, the employee must be in paid status for fifty percent (50%) or more of the workdays during the month.

15.6.1 Sick leave of absence with pay due to illness or injury is a privilege granted to school unit members to protect the health and welfare of both unit members and students.

- 15.6.2 Unit members are encouraged to use their sick leave when they are ill to enable them to regain and remain in good health. Among the reasons for which sick leave may be used are dental care, doctor visits, or other health purposed which require specialized treatment for themselves.
- 15.6.3 Unit members shall be entitled to leave of absence for illness, accident, quarantine, or injury as provided by the Education Code. Any unused portion of the earned annual sick leave shall be accumulated without limit.
- 15.6.4 A permanent unit member who resigns and is reemployed within thirty-nine (39) months, shall be reinstated all unused sick leave credit existing at the time of resignation, if any days are available, as provided in the Education Code.
- 15.6.5 Verification of illness by a medical doctor may be required by the District of any absence of five (5) or more days for which sick leave is claimed.
- 15.6.6 A Classified Leave Request absence form provided by the District shall be completed by each unit member requesting a leave.
- 15.6.7 A probationary unit member may not use more that six (6) days of paid sick leave during their initial probationary period. If a probationary unit member does not pass their initial probationary period, a deducting shall be taken from the final pay warrant for use of any unearned sick leave.
- 15.6.8 At the beginning of the school year, the sick leave account of the permanent employee shall be increase by the number of days of paid sick leave which would normally be earned in the ensuing school year (for twelve (12) month employees, their account will be credited in July).
- 15.6.9 In the event of termination prior to completion of the school year/fiscal year, a deduction shall be taken from the final pay warrant for use of unearned sick leave.
- 15.6.10 An employee who has been an employee of other California school districts for a period of one school year or more and who accept a position in the Torrance Unified School District within one year of termination from the first school district shall have transferred with them to this school district the total amount of sick leave which was accumulated in the first school district upon written request of the employee.

#### 15.7 EXTENDED ILLNESS BENEFITS

When a regular employee has exhausted all accrued and advance sick leave, unit members shall be entitled to 100 working days of extended illness benefits. Any such days of extended sick

leave benefits shall be compensated at no less than 50% (half pay) of the unit member's regular salary.

- 15.7.1 At the option of the employee, unit members may also use any accrued vacation pay in lieu of half pay illness.
- 15.7.2 Holidays that fall within the 100 day period shall be compensated at the regular rate of pay. Compensation time will be treated like vacation usage.
- 15.7.3 When medically cleared to assume the duties of the position during the thirtynine (39) month period, he/she shall be employed in vacant position in the class of his/her previous assignment over all other available candidates except for a reemployment list established because of lack of work or lack of funds, in which case he/she shall be listed in accordance with seniority regulations.

#### 15.8 INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT AND ILLNESS LEAVE

Employees who are absent from duty because of a job-related illness or injury shall be granted leaves of absence for no more than sixty (60) working days in any one fiscal year for the same injury or illness (leave does not accumulate from year to year) with full salary.

Leaves resulting from an industrial accident or industrial illness shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of Education Code Sections 44043 and 45195 and this rule.

- 15.8.1 Industrial injury or illness leave will commence on the first day of absence. Such industrial injury or illness leave will be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a compensation awarded made under workers' compensation.
- 15.8.2 Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to an award granted employees under compensation laws, exceed the normal wage for the day.
  - Employees shall endorse the District wage-loss benefit checks received under the compensation laws.
- 15.8.3 The number of days of illness or injury leave under worker's compensation laws shall not be deducted from the number of days of illness or injury leave to which employees are entitled under provisions of the sick leave article (Section 15.6). When entitlement to industrial injury or illness leave has been exhausted, entitlement or other sick leave will be used, but if employees are receiving workers' compensation, they shall be entitled to use only so much of their accumulated or available sick leave, accumulated compensating time vacation, or other available leave which, when added to the workers' compensation award, provides a full day's wage or salary.

- 15.8.4 If an industrial injury or illness leave occurs at a time when the sixty (60) days will overlap into the next fiscal year, employees shall be entitled to only that amount of time remaining at the end of the fiscal year in which the injury or illness occurred for the same illness or injury.
  - 15.8.4.1 The District reserves the right to secure proof of industrial illness or injury to an employee.
- 15.8.5 Any time an employee on industrial injury or illness leave, in paid status, are able to return to work, they shall be reinstated in their position(s) without loss of pay or benefits.
- 15.8.6 When all available leaves of absence, paid or unpaid, have been exhausted and if the unit member is not medically able to assume the duties of his/her position, he/she shall, if not placed in another position be placed on a reemployment list for a period of thirty-nine (39) months.
- 15.8.7 When medically cleared to assume the duties of the position during the thirtynine (39) month period, he/she shall be employed in vacant position in the class of his/her previous assignment over all other available candidates except for a reemployment list established because of lack of work or lack of funds, in which case he/she shall be listed in accordance with appropriated seniority regulations.

#### 15.9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

A leave of absence with pay and without deductions from accumulated sick leave, not to exceed five (5) days, shall be granted to employees because of the death of any member of the immediate family or any relative living in the immediate household of the employees.

- 15.9.1 Three (3) additional days will be granted to employees if out-of-state travel or three hundred (300) miles intrastate travel is required because of the death of any member of the immediate family.
- 15.9.2 Any additional days requested beyond those provided by this Agreement must be handled through the provisions of Section 15.10, Personal Necessity Leave, of this Agreement.

#### 15.10 PERSONAL NECESSITY LEAVE

A permanent employee, at their election may use up to seven (7) days of sick leave (providing that sick leave is available) in any instructional year in cases of personal necessity, including any of the following:

- 15.10.1 The death of a member of the employee's immediate family when the number of days of absence exceeds the limit provided in the bereavement section of the Agreement. Member of the immediate family are determined in Subsection 15.9.2 of this Article. Permission to use the bereavement section of this Agreement for other relatives because of extenuating circumstances may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.
- 15.10.2 Attendance at the funeral of a close relative or friend not living in the immediate household.
- 15.10.3 An accident involving the employee's property or property of a member of the employee's family. Such accident must:
  - a. be serious in nature;
  - b. involve circumstances employees cannot reasonable be expected to disregard; and
  - c. require the attention of employees during their assigned hours of services.
- 15.10.4 An illness or problem of a member of the employee's immediate household as defined in Item (a) of Subsection 15.10.3 above, serious in nature, which, under the circumstances, employees cannot reasonably be expected to disregard and which requires the attention of employees during their assigned hours of services.
- 15.10.5 Imminent danger to the homes of employees occasioned by a factor such as flood or fire, serious in nature, which, under the circumstances, employees cannot reasonably be expected to disregard and which requires the attention of employees during their assigned hours of services.
- 15.10.6 The birth of child making it necessary for a member of the immediate family as defined in Section 15.9.2 to be absent from his/her position during the assigned hours of service.
- 15.10.7 Appearance in court as a litigant.
- 15.10.8 For the observance of religious holidays.
- 15.10.9 To participate in the activities of the school or child care facility (licensed day care and Kindergarten through 12 grade) of any child of which the employee is the parent, guardian or custodial grandparent provided by Section 230.8 of the Labor Code.
- 15.10.10 Up to three (3) of the seven (7) days may be used for reasons not specified above in 15.10. The unit member shall not be required to give reasons for use of such days.

15.10.11 When advance permission is required, a unit member shall secure the advance permission of his or her immediate supervisor on the prescribed form provided.

#### **15.11 JURY DUTY**

The District shall grant a leave of absence to an employee who is in a position not requiring certification qualifications and who is called for jury duty in the manner provided bylaw. No more that two percent (2%) of the employees of the District shall be granted leaves of absence with pay for jury duty at any one time.

- 15.11.1 The leave shall be granted with pay up to the amount of difference between the employees' regular earnings and any amount the employee receives as jurors' fees.
- 15.11.2 Request for jury service leave should be made by presenting the official court summons of jury service to the unit member's immediate supervisor.
- 15.11.3 A unit member who has received a leave of absence under this provision shall make himself/herself available for work at regularly scheduled working hours when his/her presence is not required by court.
- 15.11.4 No absence under any paid leave provisions of this article shall be considered as a break in service for any employee who is in a paid status, and all benefits occurring under the provisions of this Agreement shall continue to accrue under such absences.

#### 15.12 SUBPOENA LEAVE

Leave of absence to serve as witness in a court case shall be granted a unit member when he/she has been served a subpoena to appear as a witness other that as the litigant or to respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the misconduct of the unit member. The length of the leave granted shall be for the number of days in attendance in court as certified by the clerk or other authorized officer of the court.

- 15.12.1 Fees, exclusive of mileage, paid by the court or party requiring an employee's appearance shall be paid to the School District. Such payment shall not exceed the employee's salary for the period of absence.
- 15.12.2 Request for leave of absence to serve as a witness should be made by presenting the official court summons to the unit member's immediate supervisor.
- 15.12.3 No absence under any paid leave provisions of this article shall be considered as a break in service for any employee who is in a paid status and all benefits occurring under the provisions of this Agreement shall continue to accrue under such absence.

#### 15.13 CATASTROPHIC LEAVE

Catastrophic Leave provisions permit unit members to withdraw sick leave credits from a Catastrophic Leave Bank when that unit member or member of his or her immediate family (as defined in Education Code 44985) suffers from a catastrophic illness or injury.

Definitions: 'Catastrophic illness" or "injury" means an illness or injury that is expected to incapacitate the unit member for an extended period of time, or that incapacitates a member of the unit member's family which incapacity requires the unit member to take time off from work for an extended period of time to care for that family member, and taking extended time off work creates a financial hardship for the unit member because he or she has exhausted all of his or her sick leave and other paid time off. It may not be used for elective surgery, personal necessity, normal pregnancy, substance abuse rehabilitation or bereavement. To be eligible for catastrophic leave, the unit member must have exhausted all accrued paid leave credits. Immediate family for the purposes of this leave shall be limited to the unit member's spouse, parent, or dependent children as defined in the Family Leave Act of 1993 (CFRA; Government Code Section 12945.2).

#### Rules and Procedures:

- 1. The Catastrophic Leave Bank shall be administered by a committee comprised of three (3) members appointed by the Association and three (3) members appointed by the District. Committee members shall serve for a three (3) year term with the first appointments being staggered terms of one, two, and three years duration.
- 2. All unit members are eligible to contribute to the Catastrophic Leave Bank on a voluntary basis. A unit member's contribution must be made on the appropriate form and shall be authorized by the unit member. Eligible sick leave credits must be donated at a minimum of one day and in full-day increments thereafter. A unit member's assigned work hours shall be considered a full day. All sick leave credit donations made to the Bank are irrevocable and are not designated to any one unit member.
- 3. Contributions may be made at any time. Unit members returning from extended leave which included the enrollment period will be permitted to contribute within 30 calendar days of beginning work. The District shall make available forms for participation in the Catastrophic Leave Bank. (Appendix G)
- 4. The annual rate of contribution by each participating unit member for each school year shall not exceed ten sick days for a full-time employee or (the number of assigned work hours per day X 10) for a part-time employee. To ensure that unit members retain sufficient accrued sick leave to meet the needs that normally arise, donors shall preserve their accumulated sick leave at a minimum of twenty days.

- 5. A unit member must use all of their accumulated sick leave and vacation leave, but not difference pay as defined in Article 15, Section 15.7 in order to be eligible for a withdrawal from the Catastrophic Leave Bank.
- 6. If a unit member is incapacitated, applications may be submitted to the Committee on the appropriate form by an agent of the unit member or member of the unit member's immediate family.
- 7. Withdrawals from the Catastrophic Leave Bank shall be granted in units of no more than twenty (20) days (based on the unit member's assigned work hours). A unit member may submit a request for extension of withdrawals as their prior grants expire. A unit member's withdrawal from the Bank may not exceed the statutory maximum period of twelve consecutive months or the equivalent of the annual salary for the position of the unit member (i.e. 10 month, 11 month, and 12 month).
- 8. Unit members applying to withdraw or extend their withdrawal from the Catastrophic Leave Bank must submit: 1) verification by means of a letter, dated and signed by the ill or injured person's physician, that clearly states the unit member is incapable of meeting the responsibilities of his/her normal work assignment due to a devastating personal health circumstances or required to take time off of work to care for a family member. This should include the probable duration of the illness or injury and/or 2) a statement describing their financial hardship. All such information shall be kept confidential.
- 9. The Catastrophic Leave Bank Committee shall have the responsibility of receiving withdrawal requests, verifying the validity of requests, approving or denying the requests, and communicating its decisions, in writing, to the unit member requesting withdrawals of sick leave time, to the CSEA president, and to the Human Resources Department.
- 10. If the Catastrophic Leave Bank does not have sufficient days to fund a withdrawal request, the Committee is under no obligation to provide days to the unit member. If the Committee denies a request for withdrawal, or an extension of withdrawal, because of insufficient days in the Bank, they shall notify the unit member, in writing, of the reason for the denial.
- 11. The Committee's authority shall be limited to administration of the Bank. The Committee shall approve all properly submitted requests complying with the terms of this Article. Withdrawals may not be denied on the basis of the type of illness or disability.
- 12. The Committee shall make every effort to review applications, approve or deny requests, and communicate decisions, in writing, to the applicants within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of the application.

### TRANSFER AND ADMINISTRATIVE ASSIGNMENT

- 16.1 A transfer refers to a change within the same classification from one site to another.
- 16.2 Voluntary Transfer:
  - 16.2.1 Transfer requests may be granted at any time, subject to the availability of positions and the qualifications of the applicant.
  - 16.2.2 Bargaining unit members who have requested a transfer on the approved District form shall be given first consideration for lateral transfers based upon, but not limited to seniority, job performance, qualifications, and District needs.
  - 16.2.3 Bargaining unit members who are denied transfers may request, in writing, and shall be granted a meeting with the appropriate administrator to discuss the transfer. Unit members may have CSEA representation at such meetings.
    - Following such meeting(s), unit members may request and shall receive written rationale for the denial of the transfer request. A copy of the written response to requests for the rationale shall become part of the employees' personnel files.

#### 16.3 Administrative Assignment:

The Superintendent or designee, subject to the approval of the Board of Education, reserves the right to transfer staff at any time such assignment appears to be in the best interest of the District. Bargaining unit members may request a conference with the appropriate administrator and may also request a written rationale for the administrative assignment. A copy of the written rationale shall become part of the employees' personnel files.

- 16.3.1 Changes in Paraeducator Tier II assignments shall be made on the basis of seniority within the classification.
- 16.3.2 If it is determined during the annual IEP (Individualized Education Plan) that a student no longer requires a Paraeducator Tier II assignment, the bargaining unit employee in that assignment may exercise one of the following options:
  - 16.3.2.1 If the bargaining unit employee wishes to remain in the Paraeducator Tier II classification, she/he shall remain in that classification for the remainder of the school year and then be assigned to a Paraeducator Tier II position at the beginning of the following school year, or

- 16.3.2.2 The bargaining unit employee may bump the least senior employee in the Paraeducator Tier II classification at the beginning of the following school year, or
- 16.3.2.3 If the bargaining unit employee is the least senior employee in the classification, may voluntarily demote to Paraeducator Tier I position at the beginning of the following school year.
- Where a Tier I paraeducator currently works with a student whose needs are determined to require a Tier II paraeducator, the Tier I paraeducator shall be designated as a Tier II paraeducator to provide services to the student for the remainder of the school year when the immediate supervisor deems the Tier I paraeducator to have the appropriate skill set and/or there are no other qualified/available Tier II paraeducators to provide service to meet the student's needs.

### **EMPLOYEE RIGHTS**

#### 17.1 PERSONNEL FILES

- 17.1.1 Employees' personnel files shall not include ratings, reports, or records which:
  - a. are obtained prior to employment of employees;
  - b. were prepared by identifiable examination members; or
  - c. were obtained in connection with a promotional examination.

The excluded documents shall be kept in a separate jacket, not available to employees or their agent.

- 17.1.2 The personnel file of each employee shall be maintained at the District's central administrative office. No adverse action of any kind shall be taken against an employee based upon materials which are not in the personnel file.
- 17.1.3 Employees shall be provided with copies of derogatory written material ten (10) workdays before it is placed in the employee's personnel file. The employee shall be given an opportunity during normal working hours and without loss of pay to initial and date the material and to prepare a written response to such material. The employee shall obtain approval from the immediate supervisor of such opportunity in advance but not later than five (5) days into the ten (10)-day grace period. The written response shall be attached to the material and placed in the personnel file. Upon written request of the employee, the time limit for a written response may be extended.

- 17.1.4 An employee shall have the right during regular business hours but not during duty time, except with prior approval of supervisor, to examine and/or obtain copies of any material from the employee's personnel file with the exception of material that includes rating, reports, or records which were obtained prior to the employment of the employee involved. The employee shall pay the established charge for copying.
- 17.1.5 All personnel files shall be kept in confidence and shall be available for inspection to other employees of the District on a need-to-know basis when necessary in the proper administration of the District's affairs or the supervision of the employee except as otherwise required by law. The District shall keep a log indicating the persons who have examined a personnel file as well as the date such examinations were made. Such log and the employee's personnel file shall be available for examination by the employee or his/her CSEA representative if authorized by the employee in accordance with Section 17.1.4 of this Article. The log shall be maintained in the employee's personnel file.
- 17.1.6 Any person who places written material or drafts of written material for placement an employee's file shall sign the material and signify the date on which such material was drafted. Any written materials placed in a personnel file shall indicate the date of such placement.

#### LAYOFF AND REEMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES

#### 18.1 **DEFINITIONS**

- 18.1.1 A "layoff" is the termination of a unit member because of lack of work or a lack of funds. A reduction in hours is considered a layoff for the purposes of this article. A unit member may be laid off if a position is being eliminated and the unit member has the least seniority in the classification, or the unit member has been displaced or bumped by a unit member whose position was eliminated.
- 18.1.2 A "reemployment right" is the right to the next vacant position in a classification ahead of any person who is not higher on the reemployment list and ahead of all new applicants.
- 18.1.3 A reemployment list" is a list of the names of laid off unit members arranged in rank order from the greatest to least seniority in the classification from which the unit member was laid off plus higher classifications.

- 18.1.4 A "bumping right" is the right when actually facing layoff to displace a unit member with the least seniority regardless of the number of hours per day or days per year in the same classification or a lower classification in which the unit member who is facing layoff has formerly held permanent regular status and still meets minimum qualifications. A bargaining unit member who has gained permanency in a special education position may bump into a special education position provided the member is specifically qualified to perform the particular service.
- 18.1.5 A "break in service" is a complete separation of a regular employment relationship with the DISTRICT. An approved leave of absence, either paid or unpaid, is not considered a break in service.
- 18.1.6 "Higher classifications" shall refer to service in any classification which receives a higher rate of pay than the classification being laid off. The basic salary range for a classification is the determining factor and not responsibility or longevity of individual unit members.

#### 18.2 SENIORITY

- 18.2.1 Length of service (seniority) shall be the only criterion used to effect layoffs. Length of service means first date of employment within the classification.
- 18.2.2 Seniority or length of service for layoff purposes shall be calculated on the basis of hire date into a particular classification plus higher classifications:
  - 18.2.2.1 Time served prior to a break in service shall not be counted toward seniority, with the following exception: a break in service is disregarded and seniority credit for prior service is granted if a unit member is reinstated, reemployed in regular status, or appointed to a regular position within thirty-nine (39) months after layoff while his/her name is on a reemployment list.
  - 18.2.2.2 Time served as a substitute or limited-term unit member prior to regular appointment shall not count towards seniority in classification.
- 18.2.3 In the event of a question of equal seniority where two (2) or more unit members have the same date of hire, layoff and reemployment shall be determined by lot.
- 18.2.4 Human Resources will maintain an updated seniority list of unit members by classification and distribute it to all affected unit members including those in a different classification if relevant. The list shall be delivered to CSEA at least 10 days prior to the notification of any employees.

18.2.5 A unit member may challenge his/her place on the seniority list by making objections known in writing to the Director – Employee Resources who shall review the objections and conduct an audit and make the results known to CSEA and the unit member prior to the effective date of any layoff involving the unit member.

#### 18.3 PROCEDURES

- 18.3.1 The DISTRICT will give a unit member no less than sixty (60) calendar days notice prior to the effective date of their layoff. Such notices shall inform the unit member of his/her displacement rights, if any, and reemployment rights. Such notice shall also inform the unit member of a reasonable amount of time, five (5) working days from the date of notice of layoff in which to render a written decision, whether or not to exercise displacement rights, if any.
- 18.3.2 Unit members shall be laid off in inverse order of seniority by job classification. Unit members who have been employed the shortest time in the classification plus higher classifications shall be laid off first.
- 18.3.3 No permanent or probationary unit members shall be laid off from position while unit members serving under emergency, provisional, limited-term, or substitute status are retained in positions of the same classification.

#### 18.4 REEMPLOYMENT

- 18.4.1 Laid off unit members are eligible for reemployment in the classification from which laid off for a thirty-nine (39) month period from the effective date of layoff and shall be reemployed in the reverse order of layoff as vacancies become available
- 18.4.2 Laid off unit members are responsible for maintaining a current address and phone number with Human Resources.
- 18.4.3 A reemployment list for each classification subject to layoffs will be established and maintained in Human Resources for the duration of any affected unit member's entitlement.
- 18.4.4 The names of unit members who are laid off will be placed on the reemployment list in accordance with length of service in the classification plus higher classifications.
- 18.4.5 Persons on layoff reemployment lists will be reemployed over all other candidates for a position vacancy.
- 18.4.6 Unit members on reemployment lists shall be eligible to compete for vacancies in other classifications for which they can qualify and shall be considered as promotional applicants as provided for in the rules of the merit system.

- 18.4.7 When a vacancy occurs in a classification for which a layoff reemployment list has been established, it shall be offered as follows: the senior unit member on the list will be notified and given an opportunity within three (3) work days to accept the vacancy. The laid off unit member may decline the offer of employment and retain his/her position on the list. The offer and response opportunity will then be made to the next person on the list. A unit member who has been laid off is eligible for rehire in a position without regard to the number of hours in the position as held at the time of the layoff. Any bargaining unit employee who accepts any offer of employment in a position with fewer hours than those prior to the layoff, shall remain on the 39 month reemployment list and continue to be offered assignments until made whole.
- 18.4.8 A unit member who has been laid off for lack of work or lack of funds and who is on a layoff reemployment list, may be employed as a substitute or limited-term unit member in his/her original classification or any other classification for which he/she is qualified, and such employment shall in no manner jeopardize or otherwise affect his/her status or eligibility for reemployment.
- 18.4.9 A permanent unit member who is laid off and is subsequently reemployed within thirty-nine (39) months shall have all rights and privileges restored. A probationary unit member shall continue to serve out the remainder of the probation period and shall also have all rights and privileges restored. No seniority credit shall be lost during periods of layoff from DISTRICT.

### 18.5 **DEMOTION IN LIEU OF LAYOFF**

- 18.5.1 In lieu of being laid off, a unit member may elect demotion to a classification with a lower salary status in which he/she had previously served under permanent status and for which he/she is still qualified, provided that the unit member has more seniority in the classification than the incumbent unit member. He/she shall be allowed to bump the unit member with the least seniority in the lower classification.
- 18.5.2 To be considered for demotion in lieu of layoff, a unit member must notify the DISTRICT in writing of such election not later than five (5) work days from the date of unit member notice.
- 18.5.3 Any unit member demoted pursuant to this section shall be placed on the step of the salary range of the classification to which he/she is demoted which is closest to, but not greater than, his/her present salary.
- 18.5.4 A unit member displaced pursuant to this section shall have the same rights as persons laid off for lack of work or lack of funds.

18.5.5 Laid off unit members who, at the time of layoff, took voluntary demotions or voluntary reductions in assigned time shall be, at the unit member's option, returned to a position in their former classification or to a position with increased assigned time as vacancies become available for a period of sixty-three (63) months from the effective date of layoff or reduction. Such unit members shall be ranked in accordance with their seniority on the reemployment list.

### 18.6 RETIREMENT IN LIEU OF LAYOFF

18.6.1 A unit member who meets the qualifications may elect retirement under the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and shall be placed on an appropriate reemployment list. If a unit member subsequently accepts, in writing, an appropriate vacant position within the period of thirty-nine (39) months, the DISTRICT shall maintain the position until PERS has processed the request for reinstatement from retirement.

### 18.7 MISCELLANEOUS

- 18.7.1 If it is determined that a unit member has been improperly laid off and would have been otherwise entitled to employment, the unit member shall be reemployed and made whole immediately upon discovery of the error.
- 18.7.2 The above constitutes the full and complete understanding of the parties concerning layoff and effects of layoff. Those permanent unit members who as a result of layoff or as a result of bumping into the least senior position would lose their eligibility for health and welfare benefits (or a portion of those benefits), shall have those benefits continued at DISTRICT expense for a minimum of one (1) calendar month from the effective date of change of status. Additionally, negatively affected unit members shall each have access to an external training program for which up to three (3) days of accumulated sick leave may be used. Additionally, release time will be provided to test for promotional opportunities in other DISTRICT classifications.
- 18.7.3 CSEA retains its right to negotiate the decision to reduce hours as well as the effects of any such decision.

### **ARTICLE 19**

### **GRIEVANCE**

### 19.1 Definitions:

19.1.1 A "grievance" is a claim by or on behalf of one or more employees covered hereby that there has been an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of a provision or express term of this Agreement and that by

- reason of such alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication, said employees' rights have been adversely affected.
- 19.1.2 A "grievant" is a bargaining unit member or CSEA Chapter 845 filing a grievance.
- 19.1.3 A "conferee" is a CSEA representative, or job site representative selected by the grievant.
- 19.1.4 A "witness" is any person required by the grievant or the District to give testimony during the grievance process.
- 19.1.5 "Employer" is the Torrance Unified School District Board of Education.
- 19.1.6 A "day" is any day during which the central administration offices are open for business and the appropriate level administrator and the grievant and the grievant representative are working. If days such as winter recess and spring recess are encompassed for the filing of a grievance, the processing of the grievance shall be extended by an off-setting number of days. (This will prevent classified employees from the necessity of processing grievances during their recess periods.)
- 19.1.7 An "extenuating circumstance" is not limited to, but may include; ill health, a serious family emergency, transport difficulties, bereavement, jury duty, having to care for someone, hospital appointment, legal problems, or force majeure.
- 19.1.8 "Regular Work Hours" are hours worked between 8 am and 5 pm during which the central administration offices are open for business.

### 19.2 Procedure

### 19.2.1 Informal Level:

Before filing a formal written grievance, the grievant shall have requested and held at least one informal conference with the immediate supervisor in a good faith effort to resolve the complaint.

If both parties mutually agree that the issue is not within the responsibility of the immediate site supervisor, both parties can mutually agree to move forward the grievance with a written summary, signed by both parties to Level 2 within ten (10) working days.

### 19.2.2 Formal Level 1:

a. Within thirty (30) days after the grievant knew or should have reasonably known about an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of a provision of this Agreement, the grievant must present the grievance in

writing on the approved District form (Appendix H) to the immediate supervisor or lose the right to grieve. The written statement shall include:

- (1) Statement of the grievance;
- (2) Circumstances involved;
- (3) Specific remedy sought; and
- (4) Statement of the specific provision(s) alleged to have been violated.

The immediate supervisor or designee shall date and sign the grievant's copy of the grievance to indicate date of receipt. An informational copy of the grievance may also be presented to the Senior Director of Human Resources.

- b. The immediate supervisor shall hold a hearing with the grievant and shall communicate the decision in writing to the grievant within five (5) days after receiving the grievance.
- c. In the event the immediate supervisor fails to conduct a hearing and render a decision in writing within five (5) days, the grievant shall notify the Superintendent or designee who shall convene a hearing with the immediate supervisor and the grievant within two (2) days after notification and direct the immediate supervisor to render a decision in writing. Such a directed decision shall be made within three (3) days.

### 19.2.3 Formal Level 2:

a. If the grievant elects to pursue the matter further, or the Level 1 Immediate Supervisor fails to meet timelines in section (a) above, the grievant may appeal that decision by making a clear and concise written statement on the approved District form with all Formal Level 1 materials attached thereto to the Senior Director – Human Resources or designee; but such appeal must be made within seven (7) days immediately following the receipt of said decision from the immediate supervisor. The Senior Director – Human Resources or designee shall hold a hearing and respond with a written decision to be communicated to the grievant within seven (7) days immediately following the receipt of the appeal statement.

### 19.2.4 Formal Level 3:

a. If the grievant elects to pursue the matter further, the grievant may, within seven (7) days, submit to the Superintendent a written request in a clear, concise statement of why the resolution at Formal Level 2 is not satisfactory and a suggested resolution by the grievant along with all materials from Formal Level 1 and Formal Level 2. Upon receipt of such

written request, the Superintendent shall, within ten (10) days, request a hearing on the alleged grievance. The Superintendent shall, after the hearing, render a decision in writing, within ten (10) days.

### 19.2.5 Formal Level 4:

- a. If the grievant elects to pursue the matter further, the grievant may, within seven days, submit to the Superintendent a written request in a clear, concise statement of why the resolution at Formal Level 3 is not satisfactory and a suggested resolution by the grievant along with all materials from Formal Level 1, Formal Level 2 and Formal Level 3 for a Board of Education resolution. Upon receipt of such written request, the Superintendent shall, within ten (10) days, request an executive session with the Board of Education on the alleged grievance.
- b. The Board of Education shall, after the hearing, render a decision, in writing, within ten (10) days, which shall be final and binding on the parties.

### 19.3 Miscellaneous

- 19.3.1 The purpose of the grievance procedure is to secure at the lowest possible administrative level equitable solutions to the problems, which may, from time to time, arise affecting the welfare of working conditions of employees enumerated in this Agreement.
- 19.3.2 All bargaining unit members have the right to file grievances without fear of prejudice or reprisal.
- 19.3.3 Nothing contained herein shall be construed as to limiting the right of any employee alleging a grievance to discuss the matter informally with any appropriate member of the administration and to have the grievance adjusted without the intervention of CSEA, Chapter 845, provided the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement and that CSEA, Chapter 845, has been given the opportunity to be present at such adjustment and to state its views.
- 19.3.4 Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the time limits specified at each level should be considered to be maximums and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limits, however, may be extended by written mutual agreement.
- 19.3.5 Failure of the grievant to abide by the time limits specified in this article shall result in the grievance being deemed abandoned except under extenuating circumstances.

- 19.3.6 The grievant shall be entitled, upon request, to a representative by CSEA, Chapter 845, at all grievance levels.
- 19.3.7 Grievance resolution matters may be performed during the workday but shall be conducted at times approved by the grievant and the immediate supervisor. The Senior Director Human Resources or designee shall solve conflicts, which may arise within the spirit of making appropriate time available for the solving of grievances. The grievance resolution hearing, or hearings, may be conducted during the regular workday; and the grievant and CSEA, Chapter 845, representative and required witnesses shall be released from duty without loss of compensation.
- 19.3.8 All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate file and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.
- 19.3.9 The District shall make available for testimony in connection with the grievance procedure any District employees with knowledge of the grievance whose appearance is requested by the grievant.
- 19.3.10 If the same alleged complaint, or substantially the same alleged complaint, is made by more than one bargaining unit member, only one member on behalf of himself/herself and the other grievants shall process the grievance through the grievance procedure. Names of all aggrieved parties shall appear on all documents related to the settlement of the grievance.
- 19.3.11 Forms for filing grievances shall be prepared jointly by the Superintendent or designee and CSEA, Chapter 845.
- 19.3.12 Written resolution of the grievance shall be signed and dated by the responsible administrator or designee and CSEA Chapter 845.

### **PROMOTION**

- 20.1 All promotional examinations shall be in accordance with state and federal regulations.
- 20.2 All promotions for bargaining unit members shall be subject to competitive examinations as provided in the Personnel Commission Rules and Regulations.

- 20.3 Employees promoted to a position in a higher classification shall be placed on a salary step that will insure a salary increase that will approximate two and one-half percent (2 1/2%).
- An employee in the bargaining unit who is promoted to a higher classification shall receive a salary step increase upon the successful completion of the probationary period.

### **SEVERABILITY**

- 21.1 Savings Clause: If during the life of this Agreement there exists any applicable law or any applicable rule, regulation, or order issued by governmental authority other than the District which shall render invalid or restrain compliance with or enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, such provision shall be immediately suspended and be of no effect hereunder, so long as such law, rule, regulation, or order shall remain in effect.
  - 21.1.1 Replacement for Severed Provision: In the event of suspension or invalidation of any Article or Section of this Agreement, the parties agree to meet and negotiate within thirty (30) days after such determination for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or Section.

### **ARTICLE 22**

### **NEGOTIATION PROCEDURE**

- 22.1 The CSEA, Chapter 845, shall present its initial proposal to the Board of Education in a public meeting no later than the second regular meeting of the Board in March of the calendar year in which this Agreement expires. The Board shall hold a public meeting no later than the second meeting in April for public input; and, at the first Board meeting in May, the Board shall present its initial response to the CSEA, Chapter 845, proposal. Before the Board takes action on a negotiated agreement, disclosure will be made at a public meeting of the major provisions of the agreement, including the costs that would be incurred by the District under the agreement for the current and subsequent fiscal years.
- 22.2 Either party to this Agreement may use the services of outside consultants to assist in the negotiations.
- 22.3 The District and CSEA, Chapter 845, may discharge their respective duties by means of authorized officers, individual representatives, or committees.
- 22.4 Negotiations shall take place at mutually agreeable times and places but not later than the second week after the response of the Board of Education to the initial proposal.

- 22.5 Impasse, mediation and fact finding shall be governed by application Government Code sections and PERB (Public Employment Relations Board) rules.
- 22.6 Employees shall be given reasonable paid release time for negotiations. Reasonable paid release time is defined as a maximum of fifteen (15) days of duty time for five (5) unit members of a total of seventy five (75) employee days which shall be taken in not less than one-half (1/2) day segments, except by mutual consent of the parties or until an agreement is tentatively agreed upon. Additional bargaining unit members may be released to attend negotiations as needed to provide expert advice regarding specific issues, with prior notice.
- 22.7 Any additions or changes in this Agreement shall not be effective unless reduced to writing and properly ratified and signed by the parties and meet the legal requirements of the Government Code.
- 22.8 It is agreed that the term of the 2015-2018 Contract between the California School Employees Association (CSEA), Torrance Chapter 845 and the Torrance Unified School District, which is incorporated by this reference, will be July 1, 2015, to and including June 30, 2018.
- 22.9 Effective February 1 of the contract years 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 either party may, by prior notice to the other party, reopen for collective bargaining negotiations the salary article, the health and welfare article and two (2) other articles of each party's choice.

### ADULT EDUCATION PROVISIONS

Adult Education Instructional Assistants and any other classified positions created specifically for the Torrance Adult School within the paraeducator bargaining unit agreement are covered by all the articles of this agreement except as modified or added to below.

### 23.1 ADULT EDUCATION POSITIONS

- 23.1.1 All other classified positions, other than Adult Education Instructional Assistant, for which an Adult Education Instructional Assistant applies, shall be subject to selection and recruitment rules of the TUSD Personnel Commission.
- 23.1.2 Any new Adult Education Instructional Assistant positions shall be 19 hour full time equivalent positions. Additional hours assignments of additional hours on a temporary basis shall be assigned per Section 25.3.6 and Section 25.3.7 of this Agreement.

### 23.2 **DEFINITIONS**

Adult Education Instructional Assistants shall be subject to Article 2 – Definitions and the definitions below.

- 23.2.1 Adult Education Instructional Assistant (AEIA): An Instructional Assistant who works only in the Torrance Adult School.
- 23.2.2 CAP: The maximum average daily attendance for which the State of California reimburses an adult school program.
- 23.2.3 Departments: Adult Basic Education (ABE), Adult Secondary (ASE), English as a Second Language (ESL), Adults with Disabilities (AD), Career Technical Education (CTE), Parent Child Participation (PCP), Older Adults (OA), Health and Safety Education (HSE), Home Economics (HE), and Child Care (CC).
- 23.2.4 Extended Work Year: The extension of the work calendar to maximize student attendance in order to reach "CAP".
- 23.2.5 Probationary Period: A trial period of one hundred thirty days or six months of paid service following appointment from an appropriate eligibility list.
- 23.2.6 Qualified: An Adult Education Instructional Assistant having special skills, training and/or experience as determined by the Personnel Commission.

### 23.3 ADULT EDUCATION HOURS AND OVERTIME

- 23.3.1 The Adult Education work year shall be subject each year to an increase of decrease in the number of days due to the state "CAP" for the adult education program.
- 23.3.2 When a term (Fall, Winter or Spring) is extended to increase adult education ADA, Adult Education Instructional Assistants are required to work the additional days.
- 23.3.3 Extended Work Year Adult Education terms are frequently extended. When it is necessary to extend the Fall, Spring or Summer terms calendars, thereby increasing the number of instructional days, the District will make every effort to notify the AEIAs by October 15 for extension of the Fall and by May 15 for extension of the Spring and/or Summer.
- 23.3.4 Workweek The full AEIA workweek shall consist of eight (8) hours per days, and forty (40) hours per week. The workweek may include Saturday. This section shall not restrain the extension of the regular workday or workweek on an overtime basis when such is necessary to carryon the business of the District as provided for in Section 7.7 of this Agreement.

- 23.3.5 Workday The length of the workday shall be designated by the District for each AEIA. Each AEIA, accepting such assignment, shall be assigned regular and minimum number of hours. In Adult Education the workday may vary due to program needs. Workdays may include nights.
- 23.3.6 Additional hours assignments: When it is determined that additional hours are available, they shall be assigned to qualified AEIAs (within the department), on the basis of seniority as per Personnel Commission Rule 10.1.9.
- 23.3.7 Additional hours on a temporary basis: When it is determined that additional hours are available on a temporary basis, these hours shall be assigned to qualified AEIAs (within the department) on the basis of seniority. Temporary additional hours shall not be considered as part of the regular hours of the assignment as per Section 23.3.7
- 23.3.8 <u>Summer School Assignment</u> The first priority to fill bargaining unit vacancies during a summer recess period shall go to the AEIA who is regularly assigned the position/hours during the regular school year. If the AEIA does not apply for the summer school vacancy then the assignment will go to the most senior qualified applicant in the department.

### 23.4 TRANSFERS AND ADMINISTRATIVE ASSIGNMENT

23.4.1 Transfers – Voluntary and Involuntary Transfers – Adult Education Instructional Assistant positions are not site specific. All assignments are within a department.

### 23.5 LAYOFF AND REEMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES

- 23.5.1 AEIAs shall be covered by the terms of Article 18 Layoff and Reemployment Procedures except as modified below.
- Per Education Code 45117, regarding notification of layoff, AEIAs shall be provided 60 days notice, except for "a layoff from a lack of funds in the event of an actual or existing financial inability to pay the salaries of classified employees or a layoff for a lack of work resulting from causes not foreseeable or preventable by the governing board."

### EFFECTS OF AGREEMENT AND ZIPPER CLAUSE

- 24.1 It is understood and agreed that the specific provisions contained in this Agreement shall prevail over the District policies and procedures and State laws to the extent permitted by State law, and that in the absence of specific provisions in this Agreement such policies and procedures shall be controlling.
- 24.2 During the term of this Agreement, CSEA and the District shall not be obligated to negotiate, except where otherwise provided for in this Agreement, on matters contained within this Agreement or matters that were considered during the process of reaching this Agreement.
- 24.3 In the event that the District desires to change or terminate a previously controlling policy, practice or procedures that has a generalized and continuing effect on the bargaining unit, that is within the scope of representation, that is not covered by this Agreement shall be subject to the bargaining process as set out in Government Code Section 3540 et seq.

### **DURATION**

25.1 Length of Agreement: This Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2015, and shall continue in effect to and including June 30, 2018, and shall automatically remain in effect for each succeeding twelve (12) months, or until completion of a binding written Agreement by the parties, which shall supersede this Agreement.

Signed and entered into this 21st day of February, 2017

Deputy Superintendent Administrative Services

Torrance Unified School District

California School Employees Association

Torrance Chapter 845

Labor Relations Representative

California School Employees Association

EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 1, 2016

### **SALARY SCHEDULE**

## AIDE/INSTRUCTIONAL ASSISTANT/PARAPROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING UNIT C 2016 - 2017

(Hourly and Monthly Salary Rates)

CLASSIFICATION	RANGE /LONGEVITY	1	2	3	4	5	
	<b>A</b> 4	2599.00	2724.00	2864.00	3007.00	3156.00	904
Instructional Assistant, Instructional Assistant Computer		(14.99)	(15.72)	(16.52)	(17.35)	(18.21)	
Lab, Adult Education Instructional Assistant, Child	10	2665.02	2790.02	2930.02	3073.02	3222.02	604
Development Program Assistant-Tier II, Adult Education		(15.38)	(16.10)	(16.90)	(17.73)	(18.59)	
Child Development Program Assistant-Tier II, and Child	15	2734.01	2859.01	2999.01	3142.01	3291.01	704
Development Enrollment Clerk I		(15.77)	(16.49)	(17.30)	(18.13)	(18.99)	
	20	2868.97	2993.97	3133.97	3276.97	3425.97	804
		(16.55)	(17.27)	(18.08)	(18.91)	(19.77)	
Paraeducator - Tier 1 (Monthly)	A5	2660.00	2791.00	2934.00	3082.00	3233.00	905
Adult Education - Instructional Assistant -		(15.35)	(16.10)	(16.93)	(17.78)	(18.65)	
Allied Health Occupational Clusters (Hourly)	10	2726.02	2857.02	3000.02	3148.02	3299.02	605
		(15.73)	(16.48)	(17.31)	(18.16)	(19.03)	
	15	2795.01	2926.01	3069.01	3217.01	3368.01	705
		(16.13)	(16.88)	(17.71)	(18.56)	(19.43)	
	20	2929.97	3060.97	3203.97	3351.97	3502.97	805
		(16.90)	(17.66)	(18.48)	(19.34)	(20.21)	
Child Development Program Assistant - Tier I	<b>A9</b>	2220.00	2327.00	2442.00	2573.00	2696.00	909
Adult Education Child Development Program		(12.81)	(13.43)	(14.09)	(14.84)	(15.55)	
Assistant - Tier I	10	2286.02	2393.02	2508.02	2639.02	2762.02	609
		(13.19)	(13.81)	(14.47)	(15.23)	(15.93)	
	15	2355.01	2462.01	2577.01	2708.01	2831.01	709
		(13.59)	(14.20)	(14.87)	(15.62)	(16.33)	
	20	2489.97	2596.97	2711.97	2842.97	2965.97	809
		(14.37)	(14.98)	(15.65)	(16.40)	(17.11)	
Paraeducator - Tier II (Monthly)	<b>A</b> 11	3185.00	3348.00	3514.00	3690.00	3874.00	911
		(18.38)	(19.32)	(20.27)	(21.29)	(22.35)	
	10	3251.02	3414.02	3580.02	3756.02	3940.02	611
		(18.76)	(19.70)	(20.65)	(21.67)	(22.73)	
	15	3320.01	3483.01	3649.01	3825.01	4009.01	711
		(19.15)	(20.09)	(21.05)	(22.07)	(23.13)	
	20	3454.97	3617.97	3783.97	3959.97	4143.97	811
		(19.93)	(20.87)	(21.83)	(22.85)	(23.91)	
Paraeducator - Tier II (Monthly)	A12	3345.00	3516.00	3689.00	3875.00	4068.00	912
with 5% LACOE Placement Stipend		(19.30)	(20.28)	(21.28)	(22.36)	(23.47)	
·	10	3411.02	3582.02	3755.02	3941.02	4134.02	612
		(19.68)	(20.67)	(21.66)	(22.74)	(23.85)	
	15	3480.01	3651.01	3824.01	4010.01	4203.01	712
		(20.08)	(21.06)	(22.06)	(23.13)	(24.25)	
	20	3614.97	3785.97	3958.97	4144.97	4337.97	812
		(20.86)	(21.84)	(22.84)	(23.91)	(25.03)	

### **SALARY SCHEDULE**

## AIDE/INSTRUCTIONAL ASSISTANT/PARAPROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING UNIT C 2016 - 2017 (Hourly and Monthly Salary Rates)

CLASSIFICATION	RANGE /LONGEVITY	1	2	3	4	5
Child Development Instructor	A13	3004.00	3159.00	3315.00	3480.00	3654.00 913
Child Development Enrollment Clerk II		(17.33)	(18.23)	(19.13)	(20.08)	(21.08)
	10	3070.02	3225.02	3381.02	3546.02	3720.02 613
		(17.71)	(18.61)	(19.51)	(20.46)	(21.46)
	15	3139.01	3294.01	3450.01	3615.01	3789.01 713
		(18.11)	(19.00)	(19.90)	(20.86)	(21.86)
	20	3273.97	3428.97	3584.97	3749.97	3923.97 813
		(18.89)	(19.78)	(20.68)	(21.63)	(22.64)
Language Assessment Proctor Tier II (Monthly)	A17	3430.00	3601.00	3782.00	3971.00	4170.00 917
		(19.79)	(20.78)	(21.82)	(22.91)	(24.06)
	10	3496.02	3667.02	3848.02	4037.02	4236.02 617
		(20.17)	(21.16)	(22.20)	(23.29)	(24.44)
	15	3565.01	3736.01	3917.01	4106.01	4305.01 717
		(20.57)	(21.55)	(22.60)	(23.69)	(24.84)
	20	3699.97	3870.97	4051.97	4240.97	4439.97 817
		(21.35)	(22.33)	(23.38)	(24.47)	(25.62)
Pre-Employment Technician	A18	3516.00	3689.00	3875.00	4070.00	4273.00 918
		(20.28)	(21.28)	(22.36)	(23.48)	(24.65)
	10	3582.02	3755.02	3941.02	4136.02	4339.02 618
		(20.67)	(21.66)	(22.74)	(23.86)	(25.03)
	15	3651.01	3824.01	4010.01	4205.01	4408.01 718
		(21.06)	(22.06)	(23.13)	(24.26)	(25.43)
	20	3785.97	3958.97	4144.97	4339.97	4542.97 818
		(21.84)	(22.84)	(23.91)	(25.04)	(26.21)
Educational Assistant - Special Education ASSISTT	A20	3982.00	4182.00	4388.00	4611.00	4840.00 920
(Autism Spectrum Services and Inclusion Support		(22.97)	(24.13)	(25.32)	(26.60)	(27.92)
Torrance Team (Monthly)	10	4048.02	4248.02	4454.02	4677.02	4906.02 620
		(23.35)	(24.51)	(25.70)	(26.98)	(28.30)
	15	4117.01	4317.01	4523.01	4746.01	4975.01 720
		(23.75)	(24.91)	(26.09)	(27.38)	(28.70)
	20	4251.97	4451.97	4657.97	4880.97	5109.97 820
		(24.53)	(25.68)	(26.87)	(28.16)	(29.48)
Job Developer	A24	4396.00	4618.00	4840.00	5088.00	5343.00 924
		(25.36)	(26.64)	(27.92)	(29.35)	(30.83)
	10	4462.02	4684.02	4906.02	5154.02	5409.02 624
		(25.74)	(27.02)	(28.30)	(29.73)	(31.21)
	15	4531.01	4753.01	4975.01	5223.01	5478.01 724
		(26.14)	(27.42)	(28.70)	(30.13)	(31.60)
	20	4665.97	4887.97	5109.97	5357.97	5612.97 824
		(26.92)	(28.20)	(29.48)	(30.91)	(32.38)

### **ANNIVERSARY INCREMENTS**

STEP 10 \$66.02 STEP 15 \$135.01 STEP 20 \$269.97

BU PE CX / SAL Q / CAL B

### **SALARY SCHEDULE**

## AIDE/INSTRUCTIONAL ASSISTANT/PARAPROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING UNIT C 2016 - 2017

(Hourly and Monthly Salary Rates)

CLASSIFICATION	RANGE /LONGEVITY	1	2	3	4	5	
Behavior Analyst	A33	5,545.00 (31.99)	5,829.00 (33.63)	6,112.00 (35.26)	6,422.00 (37.05)	6,746.00 (38.92)	933
	10	5,711.35 (32.95)	6,003.87 (34.64)	6,295.36 (36.32)	6,614.66 (38.16)	6,948.38 (40.09)	633
	15	5,836.11 (33.67)	6,135.02 (35.39)	6,432.88 (37.11)	6,759.15 (39.00)	7,100.16 (40.96)	733
	20	6,002.46 (34.63)	6,309.89 (36.40)	6,616.24 (38.17)	6,951.81 (40.11)	7,302.54 (42.13)	833
Occupational Therapist	A40	6,692.00 (38.61)	7,030.00 (40.56)	7,379.00 (42.57)	7,751.00 (44.72)	8,132.00 (46.92)	940
	10	6,892.76 (39.77)	7,240.90 (41.77)	7,600.37 (43.85)	7,983.53 (46.06)	8,375.96 (48.32)	640
	15	7,043.33 (40.63)	7,399.07 (42.69)	7,766.39 (44.81)	8,157.92 (47.07)	8,558.93 (49.38)	740
	20	7,244.09 (41.79)	7,609.97 (43.90)	7,987.76 (46.08)	8,390.45 (48.41)	8,802.89 (50.79)	840

### **ANNIVERSARY INCREMENTS**

STEP 10	3.00%
STEP 15	5.25%
STEP 20	8.25%

Behavior Analyst and Occupational Therapist - \$1,284.34 per year will be paid for an Ed.D., Ph.D., J.D. or D.D.S. earned from an accredited institution, dependent upon relevance to the current assignment.

BU PE CX / SAL Q / CAL B



Book Board Policies

Section 1000: Community Relations

Title Uniform Complaint Procedures

Number BP 1312.3

Status Active

Adopted May 19, 2003

Last Revised October 24, 2016

BP 1312.3

### **UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES**

The Board of Education recognizes the District's primary responsibility to comply with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board of Education encourages the early, informal resolution of complaints whenever possible and appropriate.

For the purposes of this policy and the associated administrative regulation, conduct constituting "harassment", "intimidation", or "bullying" is conduct that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and invading the rights of another by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment.

To resolve complaints which cannot be resolved through an informal resolution process, the Board of Education adopts a uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative regulations.

The District's Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the following complaints:

- 1. Any complaint alleging District violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, after school education and safety programs, migrant education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs, and any other District-implemented program which is listed in Education Code 64000(a) (5 CCR 4610)
- 2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, in District programs and activities against any person based on his/her actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics, in district programs and activities, including, but not limited to, those funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial assistance. (5CCR 4610)
- 3. Any complaint alleging bullying in District programs and activities, regardless of whether the bullying is based on a person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.
- 4. Any complaint alleging District noncompliance with the requirement to provide reasonable accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, breastfeed and infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the student (education Code 222)

- 5. Any complaint alleging District violation of the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities A complaint about unlawful pupil fees for participation in an educational activity may be filed anonymously provided that it includes sufficient evidence or information of the prohibited pupil fee. (Education Code 49013, 5 CCR 4610)
- 6. Any complaint alleging that the District has not complied with legal requirements related to the implementation of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) and the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). (Education Code 52075)
- 7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging District noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement decisions, the responsibilities of the District's educational liaison to the student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)
- 8. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, alleging District noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student regarding the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2)
- 9. Any complaint alleging District noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code 51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student to a course without educational content for more than one week in any semester or to a course the student has previously satisfactorily completed, without meeting specified conditions (education Code 51228.3)
- 10. Any complaint alleging District noncompliance with the physical education instructional minutes requirement for students in elementary school (Education Code 51210, 51223)
- 11. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy.

### **Non-UCP Complaints**

The following complaints are examples that shall not be subject to the District's UCP but shall be referred to the specified agency: (5 CCR 4611)

- 1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement agency.
- 2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator.
- 3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify the complainant by first class mail of the transfer.
- 4. In addition, the District's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used to investigate and resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments. (Education Code 35186)
- 5. When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the District shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the District's UCP.

### No Retaliation

The District shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. As appropriate for any complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep confidential the identity of the complainant and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the complainant, as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) (cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

### **Informal Resolution**

The Board of Education encourages the early, informal resolution of complaints at the site level whenever possible.

The Board recognizes that a neutral mediator can often suggest a compromise that is agreeable to all parties in a dispute. In accordance with uniform complaint procedures, whenever all parties to a complaint agree to try resolving the problem through mediation, the Superintendent or designee shall initiate that process. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the results are consistent with state and federal laws and regulations.

Policy

### TORRANCE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

adopted: May 19, 2003 Torrance, California

revised: December 13, 2004; June 5, 2006; September 7, 2010; June 4, 2012; October 8, 2012; September 16, 2013;

January 20, 2015; September 21, 2015; May 2, 2016; October 24, 2016



Book Administrative Rules

Section 1000: Community Relations

Title Uniform Complaint Procedures

Number AR 1312.3

Status Active

Adopted May 19, 2003

Last Revised October 24, 2016

AR 1312.3

### UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

#### Introduction

Except as the Board of Education may otherwise specifically provide in other District policies, these Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints specified in BP 1312.3.

### **Compliance Officers**

The District designates the following <u>lead</u> compliance officer to receive and investigate complaints and ensure District compliance with law:

Senior Director – Human Resources 2335 Plaza Del Amo Torrance, CA 90501 (310) 972-6071

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees designated to investigate complaints are knowledgeable about the laws and programs for which they are responsible. Such employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

The lead compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to investigate the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the complainant if another compliance officer is designated to investigate the complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be designated to investigate a complaint if he/she is mentioned in the complaint or has a conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating the complaint. Any complaint filed against or implicating a compliance officer may be filed with the Superintendent or designee.

The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether interim measures are necessary during and pending the results of an investigation. If interim measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to implement, if possible, one or more of the interim measures. The interim measures may remain in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the District issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first.

### Notifications

The District's Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all District schools and offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code 234.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the District's uniform complaint procedures including information regarding unlawful student fees, local control and accountability plan (LCAP) requirements, and requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth and homeless students, to students, employees, parents/guardians, the District advisory committee, school advisory committees, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other interested parties. (Education Code 262.3, 49013, 48853, 48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622)

The annual notification and complete contact information of the compliance officer(s) may be posted on the District web site and, if available, provided through district-supported social media.

All students and parents/guardians, including students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, shall have access to the relevant information provided in the District's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular District school speak a single primary language other than English, the District's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985.In all other instances, the District shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

### The notice shall:

- 1. Identify the person(s), position, or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints
- 2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her under state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying laws, if applicable.
- 3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process pursuant to Education Code 262.3, including the complainant's right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of Education (CDE) or to pursue remedies before civil courts or other public agencies such as the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying).
- 4. Include statements that:
- a. The District is primarily responsible to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs
  - b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date of receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.
- c. A complaint alleging retaliation or discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying must be filed not later than six months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying occurs, or six months from the date the

complainant first obtains knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the

complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension.

- d. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, District staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.
- e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the District receives notice of any allegation that is subject to the UCP, the District shall take affirmative steps to investigate and address the allegations, in a manner appropriate to the particular circumstances. If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation reveals that discrimination has occurred, the District will take steps to prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its discriminatory effects on the complainant, and on others, if appropriate.
- f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for his/her participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the District's educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.

- g. The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner that includes meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other stake holders in the development and/or review of the LCAP.
- h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to his/her educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as well as the responsibilities of the District liaison for foster youth to ensure and facilitate these requirements and to assist the student in ensuring proper transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers between schools or between the District and another district.
- i. A foster youth or homeless student who transfers into a District high school or between District high schools shall be notified of the District's responsibility to:
  - 1. Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency, and to issue full or partial credit for the coursework completed.
  - 2. Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course which he/she has satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency.
  - 3. If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before the transfer, provide the student information about District-adopted coursework and Board-imposed graduation requirements from which he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code 51225.
- j. The complainant has a right to appeal the District's decision to the California Department of Education (CDE) by filing a written appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the District's decision.

In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right to file an appeal with the CDE in the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is dissatisfied with

the District's decision.

- k. The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the District and a copy of the District's decision.
  - I. Copies of the District's Uniform Complaint Procedures are available free of charge.

### **District Responsibilities**

All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the District's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline. (5 CCR 4631)

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the District shall inform the respondent when the complainant agrees to an extension of the timeline for investigating and resolving the complaint.

The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633.

All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or allegations of retaliation, unlawful discrimination, or bullying confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the integrity of the process. (5 CCR 4630, 4964)

### Step 1: Filing of Complaint

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints received, providing each with a date stamp and number.

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, District staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)

All complaints shall be filed in accordance with the following:

- 1. A written complaint alleging District violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs may be filed by any individual, public agency, or organization. (5 CCR 4630)
- 2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the school. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4630)
- 3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she personally suffered unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint shall be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. (5 CCR 4630)
- 4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying is filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the allegation.
- 5. When the complainant or alleged victim of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her that the request may limit the District's ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the District will nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and respond to the complaint consistent with the request.
- 6. If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, District staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)

### **Optional Mediation**

Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying complaint, the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to related confidential information. The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at any time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the District's timelines for investigating and resolving the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If the mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the District shall take only the actions agreed

to through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the District shall then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation. (5 CCR 4631)

### Step 2: Investigation of Complaint

Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance officer or designee shall provide the complainant and/or his/her representative an opportunity to present the complaint and any evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. The compliance officer also shall collect all documents and interview all witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint.

As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or support the investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the District's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, or his/her failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or his/her engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of lack of evidence to support the allegations. (5 CCR 4631)

Refusal by the District to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 4631(d))

In accordance with law, the District shall provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint. (5 CCR 4631)

The compliance officer or designee shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in determining the veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the allegation is more likely to be true than not.

### Step 3: Report of Findings

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the complainant a written report of the District's investigation and decision, as described in Step 4 below, "Final Written Decision," within 60 days of the District's receipt of the complaint. (5 CCR 4631)

### Step 4: Final Written Decision

The District's decision shall be in writing and sent to the complainant and respondent. (5 CCR 4631)

In consultation with legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision may be communicated to other parties as appropriate.

The District's decision shall be written in English and, when required by Education Code 48985, in the complainant's primary language.

For all complaints, the decision should contain: (5 CCR 4631)

- 1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered)
- 2. The conclusion(s) of law
- 3. Disposition of the complaint
- 4. Rationale for such disposition
- 5. Corrective actions, if any are warranted
- 6. Notice of the complainant's right to appeal the District's decision within 15 calendar days to the California Department of Education and the procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal

In addition, any decision concerning a retaliation, discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaint based on state law shall include a notice that the complainant must wait until 60 days have elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies. (Education Code 262.3)

### **Corrective Action**

When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school or district environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce District policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate surveys.

If investigation of a complaint results in discipline to a student or an employee, the decision shall simply state that corrective action was taken and that the student or employee was informed of District expectations. The report shall not give any further information as to the nature of the disciplinary action.

If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and other charges or any requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the District shall provide a remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians, subject to procedures established through regulations adopted by the state board. (Education Code 49013, 52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, such remedies, where applicable, shall include reasonable efforts to ensure full reimbursement to affected students and parents/guardians. The District will, in good faith, engage in reasonable efforts to identify and fully reimburse all pupils, parents, and guardians who paid a pupil fee within one year prior to the filing of the complaint. (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600)

### Appeals to the California Department of Education

If dissatisfied with the District's decision, the complainant may appeal in writing to the CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the District's decision. (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4632.)

When appealing to the CDE, the complainant shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. A copy of the locally filed complaint, and a copy of the District's decision shall accompany the appeal. (5 CCR 4632)

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant has appealed the District's decision, the Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE: (5 CCR 4633)

- 1. A copy of the original complaint
- 2. A copy of the written decision
- 3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the District, if not covered by the decision
- 4. A copy of the investigation file, including but not limited to all notes, interviews, and documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator
- 5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
- 6. A copy of the District's uniform complaint procedures
- 7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE

The CDE may directly intervene in the complaint without waiting for action by the District when one of the conditions listed in 5 CCR 4650 exists, including cases in which the District has not taken action within 60 days of the date of the complaint was filed with the District.

### **Civil Law Remedies**

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the complainant that:

- 1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the District's complaint procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with the CDE. (Education Code 262.3)
- 2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law. (Education Code 262,3)
- 3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights at <a href="https://www.ed.gov/ocr">www.ed.gov/ocr</a> within 180 days of the alleged discrimination.

Regulation

TORRANCE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

approved: May 19, 2003

Torrance, California

revised:

April 3, 2006; September 7, 2010; October 3, 2011; June 4, 2012; October 8, 2012

September 16. 2013; January 20, 2015; September 21, 2015; May 2, 2016;

October 24, 2016

### **Torrance Unified School District's Civility Procedures**

The purpose of these procedures is to promote mutual respect, civility and orderly conduct among District employees, parents and the public. The District is committed to keeping schools and offices free from disruptions and preventing unauthorized persons from entering school or District grounds and/or disrupting school activities. These procedures are intended to maintain, to the extent possible and reasonable, a safe and harassment-free work place for staff, students and parents. The Torrance Unified School District expects positive and civil communication between staff, students, parents and the community and discourages volatile, hostile or aggressive behaviors that cause fear, intimidation and/or disruptions.

### **Disruptions**

- 1. The use of profanity or obscene or threatening language or loud and inflammatory language which may reasonably cause disruption or violent reaction is prohibited between staff, parents, students and community while on school grounds, any District property, or during school activities. The prohibition includes phone conversations, letters, memoranda or e-mails.
- 2. Any individual who disrupts or threatens to disrupt school/office operations; threatens the health or safety of students or staff; willfully causes property damage; uses loud and inflammatory language which can reasonably be expected to lead to substantial disruption or provoke a violent reaction; shall be directed to leave the District property or activity promptly by the site administrator or his/her designee.
- 3. Employees are directed to end all conversations, whether by phone, in writing or e-mail with individual(s) who continue to violate these procedures after the employee notifies the individual(s) of the violation. The employee shall provide a written report of the incident to the administrator in charge of the site or activity, or his or her designee.

### **Safety and Security**

- 4. The Superintendent or designee will ensure that a safety and/or crisis intervention techniques program is provided in order to raise awareness on how to deal with these situations if and when they occur.
- 5. When violence is directed against an employee, or theft against property, employees shall promptly report the occurrence to their principal or supervisor and complete an Incident Report. Employees and supervisors should complete the Incident Report and report to law enforcement any attack, assault or threat made against them on school/District premises or at school/District-sponsored activities.
- 6. An employee, whose person or property is injured or damaged by willful misconduct of a student, may ask the District to pursue legal action against the student or the student's parent/guardian.

### **Documentation**

7. When it is determined by staff that a member of the public is in the process of violating the provisions of these procedures, an effort should be made by staff to provide a written copy of these procedures, including applicable code provisions, at the time of occurrence. The employee will immediately notify his/her supervisor and provide a written report of the incident. The administrator will then take appropriate action.

### **California Education Code**

44811, in part. (a) Any parent, guardian, or other person whose conduct in a place where a school employee is required to be in the course of his or her duties materially disrupts classwork or extracurricular activities or involves substantial disorder is guilty of a misdemeanor. (b) A violation of subdivision (a) shall be punished as follows:

- (1) Upon the first conviction, by a fine of not less than five hundred dollars (\$500) and not more than one thousand dollars (\$1,000), or by imprisonment in a county jail for not more than one year, or by both the fine and imprisonment.
- (2) Upon a second conviction, by imprisonment in a county jail for a period of not less than 10 days, and not more than one year, or by both imprisonment and a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars (\$1,000). The defendant shall not be released on probation, or for any other basis until he or she has served not less than 10 days in a county jail.
- (3) Upon a third or subsequent conviction, by imprisonment in a county jail for a period of not less than 90 days, and not more than one year, or by both imprisonment and a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars (\$1,000). The defendant shall not be released on probation, or for any other basis until he or she has served not less than 90 days in a county jail.

References:

Education Code Sections 44810, 44811, 32210 and 32211 Penal Code Sections 241.2; 241.4; 241.6; 243.2; 243.5; 243.6; 243.8; 626.4; 626.6; 626.7; and 626.8

### CIVILITY INCIDENT REPORT

TORRANCE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 2335 Plaza del Amo Torrance, CA 90509

### Please type or use black ink

Name	Site			
Today's Date	Date & time (approx) of inci-	dent		
Location of Incident (office, classroom, hally	way, etc.)			
Name of Person you are reporting (if known)	)			
If Name is not known, physical description				
Has there been a prior incident with this pers				
Date & Time (approx) of prior incident				
Comments:				
Is this person a parent/guardian or relative of		yes		
Did you feel your safety was being threatene		yes		
Was your ability to work interrupted?		yes		
Were there any witnesses to this incident?		yes		
Name of witness(es)				
Were the police contacted? yes				
Below, describe what happened: (If you need a		ck of this sheet Tha	ank vou)	
below, describe what happened. (If you need to	additional space, pieuse use the out	or this sheet. The	iik you)	
Signature of Person completing this form				

A copy of this Civility Incident Report shall <u>immediately</u> be sent to the Senior Director – Elementary Schools or Senior Director – Secondary Schools, and the Senior Director – Human Resources.

Human Resources Department July 2014

<b>Torrance Unified School District</b>
l School
<b>District</b>
2016-17 School Year Ca
School
Yea
<b>r</b> (

27	* 20	* 13	6		M			26	19	12	vı *		M	
28	21	14	7		T	FE		27	20	13	^#		T	SEP
	22	15	8	1	W	FEBRUARY		28	21	14	7		M	SEPTEMBER
	23	16	9	2	ТН	RY		29	22	15	<b>∞</b> ••	1	ТН	BER
	24	17	10	3	F			30	23	16	9	2	F	
27	20	13	6		M			31	24	17	10	3	M	
28	21	14	7		T				25	18	11 #	4	T	C
29	22	15	<b>∞</b>	1	W	MARCH			26	19	12	5	W	OCTOBER
30	23	16	9	2	TH	H			27	20	13	6	TH	3ER
31	24	17	10	ယ	Ħ				28	21	14	7	F	
	I 			I.			1				1			
	24	17	10	ယ	M			28	21	14	7		M	
	25	18	11 ×	4	T	Þ		29	22	15	œ	<u> </u>	T	NO
	26	19	x 12	vı	W	APRIL		30	23	16	9	2	W	NOVEMBER
	27	20	X 13	6	ТН	`			* 24	17	10	3	ТН	ER
	28	21	14	7	F				* 25	18	11 *	4	F	
	<u> </u>													
* 29	22	15	<b>∞</b>	1	M			* 26	X 19	12	υ,		M	
30	23	16	9	2	T			27	20 X	13	6		T	DEC
31	24	17	10	3	W	MAY		X 28	X 21	14	7		W	DECEMBER
	25	18	11	4	ТН			X 29	22	15	œ	1	TH	ER
	26	19	12	S	F			* 30	* 23	16	9	2	F	
26	19	12	O)		M			30	23	* 16	9	2 *	M	
	20	13	6		T			31	24	17	10	3	T	J
28	21	14	7		W	JUNE			25	18	11	4	W	JANUARY
29	22	15	<b>∞</b>	-	ТН	( <del>T</del> )			26	19	12	5	ТН	RY
30	23	16	9	2	F				27	20	13	6	F	

# \* HOLIDAYS PER EDUCATION CODE §37220

* Holiday	Date in 2016-17	Day of week	Day or date each year
* Independence Day	4 Ainf	Monday	July 4
* Labor Day	Sept. 5	Monday	1 <sup>st</sup> Mon. in Sept.
* Veteran's Day	Nov. 11	Friday	Nov. 11
* Thanksgiving Day	Nov. 24	Thursday	4 <sup>th</sup> Thurs. in Nov.
* Thanksgiving Holiday	Nov. 25	Friday	4 <sup>th</sup> Fri. in Nov.
* Christmas Eve	Dec. 23	Friday	Dec. 24
* Christmas Day	Dec. 26	Monday	Dec. 25
* New Year's Eve	Dec. 30	Friday	Dec. 31
* New Year's Day	Jan. 2	Monday	Jan. 1
* M. L. King, Jr. Day	Jan. 16	Monday	3 <sup>rd</sup> Mon. in Jan.
* Lincoln Day	Feb. 13	Monday	Feb. 12
* President's Day	Feb.20	Monday	3 <sup>rd</sup> Mon. in Feb.
* Memorial Day	May 29	Monday	Last Mon. in May

# # SBCP Staff Development/Student Free Days (K-12)

# <u>Sept. 6.</u> (ES/MS/HS); # <u>Sept. 7.</u> (ES/MS/HS Orientation/Planning) # <u>Oct.10.</u> (ES/MS/HS); # <u>Oct.11.</u> (ES/MS/HS) # <u>June 23.</u> (ES/MS/HS)

# x Non-Teaching Days

Spring Break	Winter Break	Local Non-Instructional Day
April 10–14	Dec. 19, 21, 22, 27,28, and 29	Nov. 23

# End of Trimester (ES)

Students Last School Day

: June 22

Students Report: Sept. 8

End of Quarter (HS/MS) Nov. 4 Jan. 27 Mar. 31 June 22

Nov. 22 Mar. 3

# Elem. Parent Conferences

Dec. 5-16 and Mar. 15-17

# Graduation (Promotion MS)

Adult School June 15 High School June 21 Middle School June 22

## Adult Education

Teachers Report

^ Sept. 6

Fall Sep 12 – Dec 16
Winter Jan 9 – Mar 24
Spring Mar 27 – Jun 16

### APPENDIX "E" **TORRANCE UNIFIED SCHOOL** DISTRICT EVALUATION REPORT FOR CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL Date Sent

Nan	ne			Position		Date	Due
	Pe	rmaner	t Employee	Probationary Employee		3 <sup>rd</sup> Month	5 <sup>th</sup> Month
Proficient	Need Improvement	Unsatisfactory	NEEDS IMPROVEMEN	EVAL - implies thorough compe IT – Problem area(s) hav A level of service not con	e been establishe	d for improving perfor	mance.
			WORK SKILLS  Knowledge of job Organization Quality of Work Quantity of work in al Care of equipment WORK HABITS Follows rules and dire		Comments:		
			Responsibility Neatness Punctuality  PERSONAL CHARACTER Cooperation Attendance Appearance Relationship with oth Judgment in perform	ers	Comments:		
			Dependability  SUPERVISORY ABILITY (I Planning and organiz Judgment in decision Training and instructi Evaluation subordina Operational economy	ing I-making ng tes	Comments:		
	Prof	ficient	DRMANCE EMENT:	Needs Improvement		Unsatis	sfactory
REC	F	Retain i Grant p Grant c	ION BY RATER (Check One n a probationary status ermanent status ontinued employment nend termination				
	Siç		of Employee	Signature of Imme	· 	Si	gnature of Reviewer
			Date	Dat	e		Date

### **CLASSIFIED EVALUATION REPORT**

- 1. The fair and objective evaluation of employee performance benefits both the employee and the district. The evaluation process should represent a cooperative effort between the employee and his supervisor to improve the quality of the employee's service in order to bring about the most effective operation of each function of the district.
- 2. The immediate supervisor is responsible for evaluating the employee's service. The reviewer is usually the next higher level supervisor.
- 3. Factors marked "Needs Improvements" and "Unsatisfactory" shall have previously been discussed with the employee and shall be explained by statements of fact under "Comments" with specific suggestions for improvement.
- 4. The signature of the employee indicates that he has seen and discussed the report with the supervisor.
- 5. An employee may initiate a written reaction or response to be filed with the evaluation in the Human Resources Division.
  - The evaluation is the formal judgment of the evaluator regarding the employee's performance. An employee who believes that the evaluation is not a true reflection of his performance may request a conference with the principal, division head, or a representative of the Human Resources Division. (Board Policy, Section 638.3, Appeal)
- 6. Probationary employees will be evaluated prior to the end of the third and fifth month of service. At least one evaluation will be completed each year for permanent employees.
- 7. The original Classified Evaluation Report shall be sent to the Human Resources Division by the due date as shown on the evaluation report. One copy shall be given to the employee; and a third copy is to be retained by the office of the school or department.



### The Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

### THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993

The U.S. Department of Labor's Employment Standards Administration, Wage and Hour Division, administers and enforces the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) for all private, state and local government employees, and some federal employees. Most Federal and certain congressional employees are also covered by the law and are subject to the jurisdiction of the U.S. Office of Personnel Management or the Congress.

FMLA became effective on August 5, 1993, for most employers. If a collective bargaining agreement (CBA) was in effect on that date, FMLA became effective on the expiration date of the CBA or February 5, 1994, whichever was earlier. FMLA entitles eligible employees to take up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave in a 12-month period for specified family and medical reasons. The employer may elect to use the calendar year, a fixed 12-month leave or fiscal year, or a 12-month period prior to or after the commencement of leave as the 12-month period.

The law contains provisions on employer coverage; employee eligibility for the law's benefits; entitlement to leave, maintenance of health benefits during leave, and job restoration after leave; notice and certification of the need for FMLA leave; and, protection for employees who request or take FMLA leave. The law also requires employers to keep certain records.

### **EMPLOYER COVERAGE**

FMLA applies to all:

- public agencies, including state, local and federal employers, local education agencies (schools), and
- private-sector employers who employed 50 or more employees in 20 or more workweeks in the current or preceding calendar year and who are engaged in commerce or in any industry or activity affecting commerce — including joint employers and successors of covered employers.

### **EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY**

To be eligible for FMLA benefits, an employee must:

- 1. work for a covered employer;
- 2. have worked for the employer for a total of 12 months\*;
- 3. have worked at least 1,250 hours over the previous 12 months\*; and
- 4. work at a location in the United States or in any territory or possession of the United States where at least 50 employees are employed by the employer within 75 miles.

<sup>\*</sup> See special rules for returning reservists under USERRA.

### LEAVE ENTITLEMENT

A covered employer must grant an eligible employee up to a total of 12 workweeks of **unpaid** leave during any 12-month period for one or more of the following reasons:

- for the birth and care of the newborn child of the employee;
- for placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foster care;
- to care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent) with a serious health condition; **or**
- to take medical leave when the employee is unable to work because of a serious health condition.

Spouses employed by the same employer are jointly entitled to a **combined** total of 12 work-weeks of family leave for the birth and care of the newborn child, for placement of a child for adoption or foster care, and to care for a parent who has a serious health condition.

Leave for birth and care, or placement for adoption or foster care must conclude within 12 months of the birth or placement.

Under some circumstances, employees may take FMLA leave intermittently — which means taking leave in blocks of time, or by reducing their normal weekly or daily work schedule.

- If FMLA leave is for birth and care or placement for adoption or foster care, use of intermittent leave is subject to the employer's approval.
- FMLA leave may be taken intermittently whenever **medically necessary** to care for a seriously ill family member, or because the employee is seriously ill and unable to work.

Also, subject to certain conditions, employees **or** employers may choose to use accrued **paid** leave (such as sick or vacation leave) to cover some or all of the FMLA leave.

The employer is responsible for designating if an employee's use of paid leave counts as FMLA leave, based on information from the employee.

"Serious health condition" means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves either:

- any period of incapacity or treatment connected with inpatient care (i.e., an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical-care facility, and any period of incapacity or subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care; **or**
- Continuing treatment by a health care provider which includes any period of incapacity (i.e., inability to work, attend school or perform other regular daily activities) due to:
- (1) A health condition (including treatment therefor, or recovery therefrom) lasting more than three consecutive days, and any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition, that **also** includes:
  - treatment two or more times by or under the supervision of a health care provider; or
  - one treatment by a health care provider with a continuing regimen of treatment; or
- (2) Pregnancy or prenatal care. A visit to the health care provider is not necessary for each absence: **or**

- (3) A chronic serious health condition which continues over an extended period of time, requires periodic visits to a health care provider, and may involve occasional episodes of incapacity (e.g., asthma, diabetes). A visit to a health care provider is not necessary for each absence; **or**
- (4) A permanent or long-term condition for which treatment may not be effective (e.g., Alzheimer's, a severe stroke, terminal cancer). Only supervision by a health care provider is required, rather than active treatment; **or**
- (5) Any absences to receive multiple treatments for restorative surgery or for a condition which would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than three days if not treated (e.g., chemotherapy or radiation treatments for cancer).

### "Health care provider" means:

- doctors of medicine or osteopathy authorized to practice medicine or surgery by the state in which the doctors practice; or
- podiatrists, dentists, clinical psychologists, optometrists and chiropractors (limited to manual manipulation of the spine to correct a subluxation as demonstrated by X-ray to exist) authorized to practice, and performing within the scope of their practice, under state law; or
- nurse practitioners, nurse-midwives and clinical social workers authorized to practice, and performing within the scope of their practice, as defined under state law; **or**
- Christian Science practitioners listed with the First Church of Christ, Scientist in Boston, Massachusetts; **or**
- Any health care provider recognized by the employer or the employer's group health plan
- benefits manager.

### MAINTENANCE OF HEALTH BENEFITS

A covered employer is required to maintain group health insurance coverage for an employee on FMLA leave whenever such insurance was provided before the leave was taken and on the same terms as if the employee had continued to work. If applicable, arrangements will need to be made for employees to pay their share of health insurance premiums while on leave.

In some instances, the employer may recover premiums it paid to maintain health coverage for an employee who fails to return to work from FMLA leave.

### JOB RESTORATION

Upon return from FMLA leave, an employee must be restored to the employee's original job, or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment.

In addition, an employee's use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that the employee earned or was entitled to **before** using FMLA leave, nor be counted against the employee under a "no fault" attendance policy.

Under specified and limited circumstances where restoration to employment will cause substantial and grievous economic injury to its operations, an employer may refuse to reinstate certain highly-paid "**key**" employees after using FMLA leave during which health coverage was maintained. In order to do so, the employer must:

- notify the employee of his/her status as a "key" employee in response to the employee's notice of intent to take FMLA leave:
- notify the employee as soon as the employer decides it will deny job restoration, and explain the reasons for this decision;
- offer the employee a reasonable opportunity to return to work from FMLA leave after giving this notice; and
- make a final determination as to whether reinstatement will be denied at the end of the leave period if the employee then requests restoration.

A "**key**" employee is a salaried "eligible" employee who is among the highest paid ten percent of employees within 75 miles of the work site.

### NOTICE AND CERTIFICATION

Employees seeking to use FMLA leave are required to provide 30-day advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need is foreseeable and such notice is practicable.

Employers may also require employees to provide:

- medical certification supporting the need for leave due to a serious health condition affecting the employee or an immediate family member;
- second or third medical opinions (at the employer's expense) and periodic recertification; and
- periodic reports during FMLA leave regarding the employee's status and intent to return to work.

When intermittent leave is needed to care for an immediate family member or the employee's own illness, and is for planned medical treatment, the employee must try to schedule treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the employer's operation.

Covered employers must post a notice approved by the Secretary of Labor explaining rights and responsibilities under FMLA. An employer that willfully violates this posting requirement may be subject to a fine of up to \$100 for each separate offense.

Also, covered employers must inform employees of their rights and responsibilities under FMLA, including giving specific written information on what is required of the employee and what might happen in certain circumstances, such as if the employee fails to return to work after FMLA leave.

### **UNLAWFUL ACTS**

It is unlawful for any employer to interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided by FMLA. It is also unlawful for an employer to discharge or discriminate against any individual for opposing any practice, or because of involvement in any proceeding, related to FMLA.

### **ENFORCEMENT**

The Wage and Hour Division investigates complaints. If violations cannot be satisfactorily resolved, the U.S. Department of Labor may bring action in court to compel compliance. Individuals may also bring a private civil action against an employer for violations.

### OTHER PROVISIONS

Special rules apply to **employees of local education agencies**. Generally, these rules provide for FMLA leave to be taken in blocks of time when intermittent leave is needed or the leave is required near the end of a school term.

Salaried executive, administrative, and professional employees of covered employers who meet the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) criteria for exemption from minimum wage and overtime under Regulations, 29 CFR Part 541, do not lose their FLSA-exempt status by using any unpaid FMLA leave. This special exception to the "salary basis" requirements for FLSA's exemption extends only to "eligible" employees' use of leave required by FMLA.

The FMLA does not affect any other federal or state law which prohibits discrimination, nor supersede any state or local law which provides greater family or medical leave protection. Nor does it affect an employer's obligation to provide greater leave rights under a collective bargaining agreement or employment benefit plan. The FMLA also encourages employers to provide more generous leave rights.

### **FURTHER INFORMATION**

The final rule implementing FMLA is contained in the January 6, 1995, Federal Register. For more information, please contact the nearest office of the **Wage and Hour Division**, listed in most telephone directories under U.S. Government, Department of Labor.

**U.S. Department of Labor**Frances Perkins Building
200 Constitution Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20210

### CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK CONTRIBUTION FORM

### CSEA, CHAPTER 845

I elect to donate	hours for my accumulated sick leave to the
CATASTROPHIC LEAV	E BANK

Minimum of one day, and in full-day increments (based on the unit member's assigned work hours) thereafter with a maximum of the unit member's annual sick leave hours

### I UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT MY DONATION TO THE BANK IS IRREVOCABLE.

(Please Print Name)	(Work I	ocation)
(Social Security Number)		
Signature	D	ate
Payroll verification of current sick leave:	hours as of	(date)
Verification of Transfer:	hours as of	(date)
Balance of accumulated sick leave:	hours as of	(date)
Verified by		

All employees must maintain a minimum balance of accumulated sick leave at a minimum of twenty days (based on the unit members assigned work hours) as per the "Rules and Procedures" for Catastrophic Leave.

This form to be returned to the Human Resources Department for processing.

### TUSD CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK REQUEST FOR SICK LEAVE DAYS

## Jointly administered by Torrance Unified School District and CSEA – Chapter 845 Bargaining Unit

NAME			
ADDRESS			For Committee Use:
ADDRESS			Request approved for
			days
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER			uays
WORK SITE			
and may not be disclosed t		ittee without your co	your medical/health information is confidentiants. Please complete and sign the following ve request:
Yes, I authorize r	nedical information included her	rein to be shared with	a Catastrophic Leave Committee.
No, I do not author	orize medical information includ	led herein to be share	ed with the Catastrophic Leave Committee.
Date	Signat	ture	
financial hardship:			
	by means of a letter, dated and parties are also as a second parties and parties are also as a second parties are a second parties are also as a second parties are also as a second parties are a second parties are also as a second parties are a second parties are also as a second parties are a second par		
Employee S	 Signature		Date

### **GRIEVANCE**

### Level I

TO:				
School Principal or	mmediate Supervisor		School or Department	
exp of s	inition: A Grievance i ressed written terms of uch alleged violation, a ersely affected.	the Agreeme	nt and that, by reason	
the		the Torrance l	the Agreement betweer Unified School District	1
State the specific terms of th numbers.	e Agreement alleged to	have been vio	lated. Please include Ar	ticle, Section, and Page
Describe in detail the action please state how your rights and time when the alleged v	have been adversely af	fected by reas	on of the alleged violation	
Specific remedy sought by C	Grievant: (Attach additi	onal pages if r	necessary.)	
Date of informal conference		(Attach copy o	of written informal decis	ion, if requested.)
Signature of Grievant			Date	

### **GRIEVANCE**

### Level II

**GRIEVANCE LEVEL II must be filed with the Senior Director- Human Resources** within seven (7) days from receipt of the decision at Level I.

GRIEVANT'S NAME:	
(Please print)	
Date of receipt of decision from LEVEL I:	
Please give a concise statement for the reason(s) for this appeal. (Atta	ach additional pages if necessary.)
Please submit this completed form with a copy of Grievance Level I a	nd its decision.
Signature of Grievant	Date

### **GRIEVANCE**

### Level III

Grievant's Name:	
(Please print)	
Grievance Level I Filing Date:	
After reviewing all documents pertaining to this Grievance, the at Level II has not resolved the alleged violation as stated in the	
The Torrance Unified School District is hereby notified that on t Bargaining Unit to submit the Grievance for review by the Supe	
Date of receipt of decision from Grievance Level II:	
Please attach to this Grievant Level III, one copy each:	Grievance Level I Decision at Level I Decision at Level II
Signature of Bargaining Unit President	Date
Signature of Bargaining Unit President	Date

### **GRIEVANCE**

### Level IV

rievant's Name:
(Please print)
rievance Level IV Filing Date:
Ifter reviewing all documents pertaining to this Grievance, the Bargaining Unit agrees that the decision rendered the Level III has not resolved the alleged violation as stated in the original Grievance.
he Torrance Unified School District is hereby notified that on this date, the Grievant has requested the argaining Unit to submit the Grievance to the Superintendent to request an executive session with the Board of ducation to hear the grievance unless the grievant requests, in writing, a public hearing with the Board of ducation on the alleged grievance.
ate of receipt of decision from Grievance Level III:
lease attach to this Grievant Level IV, one copy each:
Grievance Level I
Decision at Level I
Decision at Level II

Decision at Level III



About EDD

Find a Job

File & Manage a Claim

**Employer Services** 

**EDD News** 

### ☐ How to File a Disability Insurance (DI) Claim by Mail

To file a DI claim by mail, complete and submit a Claim for Disability Insurance (DI) Benefits (DE 2501). Follow the steps below to properly submit a DI claim by mail.

### 1. Obtain a Paper Claim Form

You can obtain a paper Claim for Disability Insurance (DI) Benefits (DE 2501) form by:

- · Visiting Online Forms and Publications and ordering a form online to have it mailed to you.
- Obtaining the form from your physician/practitioner or employer.
- · Visiting an SDI Office.
- Calling 1-800-480-3287.

### 2. Gather Required Information

You must provide the following information to file a DI claim:

- First and last name.
- · Social Security number.
- California Driver License number.
- Most current employer's business name, phone number, and mailing address (as stated on your W-2 or paystub).
- · Last date you worked your regular duties and hours or date you began working at less than full duty or modified duty.

Provide the information below **ONLY** if it applies to you:

- Any wages you received or expect to receive from your employer (sick leave, paid-time-off (PTO), vacation pay, annual leave, and wages earned after you stopped working).
- Any workers' compensation claim information, if applicable.
- If you receive in-patient treatment at an alcoholic recovery home or drug-free facility, provide the name, address, and phone number of the home or facility.

### 3. Complete Part A: Claimant's Statement

Complete Part A - Claimant's Statement (pages 1-4), of the DE 2501 form. Be sure to write clearly in the spaces provided, use black ink only, and make sure you sign the form.

Note: Do not complete any portion of Part B - Physician/Practitioner's Certificate of the DE 2501 form.

### Important:

- When to submit a claim: Submit your claim no earlier than nine days after the first day your disability begins, but no later than 49 days after your disability begins or you may lose benefits.
- Duplicate claims: Do not submit duplicates of the same claim. This will delay claim processing.

### 4. Physician/Practitioner Completes Part B: Medical Certification

After completing Part A, contact your physician/practitioner about completing, signing, and submitting your medical

certification (Part B - Physician/Practitioner's Certificate, pagerential are responsible for obtaining a Physician/Practitioner Certification for your disability. Be sure to talk to your physician/practitioner about their process for submitting a DI claim; they do not all follow the same process. Some offices may have you mail in Part B, while others may mail in Part B themselves.

Your physician/practitioner may complete and submit the medical certification on the paper form or through SDI Online. The certification must be submitted no later than 49 days after your disability begins or you may lose benefits.

### Important:

- If your physician/practitioner wishes to submit Part B Physician/Practitioner's Certificate using SDI Online, allow 14 calendar days for the EDD to receive and process your claim.
- After your claim has been received, your physician/practitioner may search for your claim in SDI Online using the last four digits for your Social Security number, last name, and date of birth or claim I.D. and last name.

### 5. Mail in the Completed Claim for Disability Insurance (DI) Benefits (DE 2501)

To submit the claim, mail the completed paper claim form to the EDD in the pre-addressed envelope to:

State of California **Employment Development Department** P.O. Box 989777 West Sacramento, CA 95798-9777

### Important:

- Make sure to put a stamp on the envelope.
- Mail your claim no earlier than nine days after the first day your disability begins, but no later than 49 days after your disability begins or you may lose benefits.
- · For faster processing, use SDI Online to file your claim.
- Do not submit duplicates of the same claim. This will delay claim processing.
- A properly completed application will include Part A Claimant's Statement, and Part B Physician/Practitioner's Certificate of your DE 2501. Your claim will not be processed until all the required parts of the application are received.
- Please note that your employer will be notified that you have submitted a DI claim. However, your detailed information is confidential and will not be shared with your employer.

For more information, visit Claimant Tutorial and After You File for DI: Claim Processing.

If you are not eligible for benefits: A Notice of Determination (DE 2517) will be mailed to you. You must meet eligibility requirements in order to receive benefits. To learn more about eligibility requirements, visit Am I Eligible for DI? If you are disqualified from receiving benefits, you will receive an Appeal Form (DE 1000A) with your disqualification notice. You have the right to appeal any decision, in writing, within 20 days of the mailing date of the disqualification notice. For more information, visit Appeals.

Contact EDD | Office Locator | Forms and Publications | Online Services | En Español





Conditions of Use | Privacy Policy | Accessibility | Site Map

Select Language Select Language

Copyright © 2017 State of California

Powered by Google Translate

Powered by Google Translate

View Disclaimer

Form 03-2014

### Torrance Unified School District workers' compensation: Pre-Designation of Personal Physician

If you have health insurance and you are injured on the job you have the right to be treated immediately by your personal physician (M.D., D.O), or medical group, if you notify your employer, in writing, prior to the injury. Per Labor Code 4600 to qualify as the your predesignated, personal physician, the physician must agree, in writing, to treat you for a work related injury, must have previously directed your medical care and must retain your medical history and records. Your predesignated physician must be a family practitioner, general practitioner, board certified or board eligible internist, obstetrician-gynecologist or pediatrician. Your "personal physician" may be a medical group if it is a single corporation or partnership composed of licensed doctors or medicine or osteopathy, which operates an integrated multi-specialty medical group providing comprehensive medical services predominantly for non-occupational illnesses and injuries.

This is an optional form that can be used to notify your employer of your personal physician. You may choose to use another form, as long as you notify your employer, in writing, prior to being injured on the job and provide written verification that your personal physician meets the above requirements and agrees to be predesignated. Otherwise, you will be treated by one of your employers' designated workers' compensation medical providers

ENDL OVEE MARKE	
EMPLOYEE NAME	
ADDRESS:	
medical treatment from my employers' medical provider. I un provide written notification of my personal physician. I underst injury.	ignate my personal physician at this time. I understand that I will received derstand that, at any time in the future, I can change my mind and that the written notification must be on file prior to an industrial  Date:
	OR
☐ If I am injured on the job, I wish to be treated by my perso	
Name of Physician or Medical Group:	Phone Number:
Address:	
*This physician is my personal primary care physician who has records.	previously directed my medical care and retains my medical history and
Name of Insurance Company, Plan, or Fund providing he	ealth coverage for non-occupational injuries or illnesses:
Employee Signature:	
A <i>Personal Physician</i> must be willing to be predesign The remainder of this form is to be completed by	nated and treat you for a workers' compensation injury.  Your physician and returned to your Employer.
PERSONAL PHYSICIA	N ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	You are not required to sign this form, however, if you or your designated nt to be predesignated will be required pursuant to Title 8, California Code of
ERSONAL PHYSICIAN OR MEDICAL GROUP NAME:	
I <u>agree to treat</u> the above named employee in the event of an indeadhere to the Administrative Director's Rules and Regulations, Section	
(Physician or Designated Employee of the Physician or Medical Group)	Date
Please return c	ompleted form to:

Torrance Unified School District, 2335 Plaza del Amo, Torrance, CA 90509; Fax: 310-972-6065

### Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

### Between

Having met and negotiated in good faith, the Torrance Unified School District ("District") and the California School Employees ("Association") and its Torrance Chapter 845 hereby agree to the following:

### RE: Article 7 Calendar/Hours and Overtime

The TUSD will provide one (1) additional day of professional staff development for CSEA Chapter 845 during the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 school year, respectively. The first will be October 11, 2016 and the second will be October 10, 2017.

Dr. Tim Stowe

**Torrance Unified School District** 

Kathy Kelle

Deputy Superintendent, Administrative Services

Date

Kathryn Kelley CSEA Chapter 845

President

Date

Anthony J. Goodin CSEA Chapter 845

Labor Relations Representative

Date

### Where to find forms

CA State Disability: <a href="www.edd.ca.gov/disability">www.edd.ca.gov/disability</a>

To report Child Abuse: <a href="http://ag.ca.gov/childabuse/forms">http://ag.ca.gov/childabuse/forms</a>

Pre-designation of Personal

Physician form: <u>www.dir.ca.gov/dwc</u>

(click on publications & forms)